
DIRECTORS 
Kent Lazarus, President 

Scott Baker, Vice President 
Charlie Robinson 
Darlene DeBaldo 

Sue Russ 

Saddle Creek Community Services District 
1000 Saddle Creek Drive - Copperopolis, CA  95228 
(209 785-6260 – saddlecreekcsd.org 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
August 19, 2014  2:00 PM 

Saddle Creek Lodge, Members Lounge 
1001 Saddle Creek Drive, Copperopolis, CA 

1. CALL TOOORDER
2. ROLL CALL
3. PLEDGE OOF ALLEGIANCE
4. CHANGES TOO ORDER OF AGENDA

5. PUBLIC COMMENT (Each speaker is limited to two (2) minutes)
Members of the public appreciated for taking the time to attend this meeting and provide comments on 
matters of District business. Any member of the public may address the Board relating to any matter 
within the Board’s jurisdiction. This need not be related to any item on the agenda; however, the Board 
cannot act on an item unless it was noticed on the agenda. 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR
Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be acted upon by one motion. There will be no 
separate discussion on these items unless a member of the Board, Staff or a member of the Public 
requests specific items be set aside for separate discussion. 

a. Review of monthly financial report and approval of bills and claims for the month
of July 2014.

b. Approval of the minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of July 15, 2014

7. OLD BUSINESS
a. Discussion/Action regarding acceptance of the 2013 independent Audit Report

prepared by Larry Bain, CPA
b. Update report by District staff of the Impact of Drought and Mandatory Water

Conservation on District Operations.
c. Approval of a Resolution amending and adopting the District’s Conflict of Interest

Code pursuant to California Government Code Section 83700 et seq.

8. NEW BUSINESS
a. Discussion/Action regarding participation in the Tuolumne-Stanislaus Integrated

Regional Water Management Plan, Watershed Advisory Committee and Joint
Powers Authority.

b. Approval of a Resolution authorizing execution of an agreement with Bank of the
West for participation in the California Special Districts Association credit card
program.

c. Approval of a Resolution establishing the Board policy on Credit Card Use.
d. Approval of a Resolution establishing the Board policy on Travel Expense

Limitations.

http://tuolumne.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=3&clip_id=353&meta_id=18610
http://tuolumne.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=3&clip_id=353&meta_id=18610
http://tuolumne.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=3&clip_id=353&meta_id=18610


Saddle Creek Community Services District 
Regular Board Meeting of July 15, 2014 
Agenda Page 2 

e. Approval of a Resolution establishing the Board Policy on Board Member
Compensation.

f. Discussion/Action regarding amendment to the 2014 budget to reflect a reduction
in personnel expenses and a commensurate increase in contracted services
expenses.

9. STAFF REPORTS:
Brief reports will be provided by District staff to inform the Board and public on the 
status of general operational and administrative matters.  No action will be taken by the 
Board during Reports, however items discussed may be recommended for discussion 
and action on a future meeting agenda.  

a. Site Manager
b. General Manager

(1) Report on the status of preparation of Board priorities and 
management objectives for 2014/2015  

(2) Proposed policy on Easement Abandonment Procedures 
(3) Report on general district administrative matters 

10. DIRECTORS REPORTS:
Brief reports will be provided by District Board members to inform on matters of general 
interest.  No action will be taken by the Board during Reports, however items discussed 
may be recommended for discussion and action on a future meeting agenda. 

11. ADJOURNMENT Next Meeting – September 16, 2014 

Agenda Materials: May be viewed on the bulletin boards outside the Saddle Creek Pro 
Shop, on the Sports Club Bulletin Board and at the CSD Website on the Saturday 
proceeding each meeting date. Materials will also be available at the meeting. 

Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance: If you require special assistance to 
participate in Board Meetings, please contact the CSD Clerk at (209) 785-0100. 
Advance notification will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to insure 
accessibility. 



Saddle Creek Community Services District 

Regular Meeting of August 19, 2014 

 
AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA 

 
6  CONSENT CALENDAR 

a. Review of monthly financial report and approval of bills and claims for the month of July 2014. 
b. Approval of the minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of July 15, 2014 

 
Background 
Consent Calendar (also referred to as Consent Agenda) items are considered routine and will be acted upon by 
one motion. The purpose of the Consent Calendar is to provide an efficient means for approval of non-
controversial/routine items, saving Board time and energy for agenda items that require much more thought and 
discussion.  Consent items are still a matter of public business and the public is allowed to comment on any 
item on the agenda, Consent or otherwise.   
 
The Board Secretary will read the title of the item as listed on Agenda. The Board President will then ask the 
Board if there is a request to pull any item, or discussion on the Consent Calendar in total.  The President then 
asks the public if there is any comment or a request to pull an item for separate discussion.  
 
The Board is considering the Consent Calendar as a single item, and only one approval motion is required. 
There will be no separate discussion on these items unless a member of the Board, Staff or a member of the 
Public requests specific items be set aside for separate discussion; and the Board President approves its removal 
from the Consent Calendar. As a matter of procedure, this request should always be honored.   
 
If there is a request to individually discuss and consider any item on the Consent Calendar, then it is appropriate 
for the Board President to set that item aside, and ask for a motion approving the remaining Consent Calendar 
items first, then take up the pulled item(s) as if they were separately listed on the agenda.   
 
Recommended Motion 
I move to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.     
 



(Approved) (Expenditures) (Expenditures) (Approved) (Expenditures) (Expenditures)
   FY 2014  Month of July  Year to Date  FY 2013  Month of July  Year to Date - 

Prior Year 

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
Audit Expense                                             7,500$                   -$                     7,500$              $          7,500  $            7,500  $                 7,500 
Accounting & Bookkeeping 6,000$                   388$                4,344$              $          5,000  $               650  $                 3,484 
On-line Back-up/Notary Fees/Bonds 1,000$                   -$                     351$                 $             700  $                    -  $                    351 
Legal Expenses 1,500$                   -$                     500$                 $          1,500  $                    -  $                    406 
Management Fees 28,500$                 4,750$             4,750$              $                  -  $                    -  $                        - 
Insurance (Property Loss/Liability)                               8,000$                   -$                     6,359$              $          7,000  $                    -  $                 6,065 
Miscellaneous/Contingency 5,000$                   575$                575$                 $          5,000  $                    -  $                      41 
Professional Development (Travel/Training) 5,000$                   80$                  4,074$              $          5,000  $               142  $                 2,831 
Dues, Certifications & Subscriptions 4,000$                   -$                     1,790$              $          4,000  $               342  $                 1,936 
Uniform Expenses 1,600$                   -$                     1,862$              $          1,600  $               406  $                    542 
Electric Power/Water/Sewer 5,000$                   567$                2,856$              $          5,000  $               543  $                 2,854 
Telephone/Pager Service 5,000$                   357$                2,451$              $          5,000  $               356  $                 2,634 
Internet Service 1,200$                   75$                  525$                 $          1,200  $                 75  $                    625 
Office Supplies/Postage 4,500$                   707$                3,113$              $          4,500  $               251  $                 2,859 
Office Equipment Repair/Replacement  2,300$                   -$                     1,788$              $          2,300  $                    -  $                 1,482 
Gate Maintenance & Opener Purchase 4,000$                   163$                1,814$              $        16,500  $                    -  $               13,264 
Street & Main Gate Lighting Maint/Repair            13,500$                 120$                5,636$              $          8,300  $                    -  $                 5,133 
Landscape Supplies & Repairs 21,000$                 427$                18,776$            $        21,000  $               695  $               18,959 
Landscape Equipment Repair/Replacement 16,500$                 -$                     16,466$            $        16,583  $               203  $               14,895 
Lease/Purchase Tractor -$                          -$                     -$                      $          3,909  $                    -  $                 3,127 
Landscape Equipment Gas & Oil 7,000$                   1,022$             2,558$              $          7,000  $                    -  $                 2,259 
Mosquito Control Products  (4) 13,500$                 -$                     12,317$            $        11,000  $            7,000  $                 9,512 
Mosquito Abatement Monitoring & Testing 3,000$                   53$                  1,157$              $          2,800  $                    -  $                 1,196 
Mosquito Abatement Vehicles Gas & Oil 13,000$                 -$                     7,677$              $        13,000  $            1,981  $                 8,064 
Mosquito Abatement Equipment Maintenance 5,000$                   -$                     5,890$              $          5,000  $               313  $                 2,759 
County Fees/LAFCO (2) 6,500$                   -$                     2,805$              $                  -  $                    -  $                        - 
Reimbursable Maint/Repair Expense (1) -$                          -$                     4,204$              $                  -  $                    -  $                 7,623 

                          Total Operational Expenses: 189,100$               9,284$             122,138$         160,392$       20,457$           120,401$             

PERSONNEL EXPENSES
Worker Compensation Insurance 16,000$                 -$                     5,144$             15,500$         -$                     4,994$                 
Health Insurance 58,780$                 3,845$             27,687$           57,000$         3,873$             24,015$               
Payroll Taxes 28,000$                 1,337$             12,173$           27,000$         2,058$             14,786$               
Processing Fees 1,400$                   111$                805$                1,400$           115$                793$                    
Directors Stipend 6,000$                   -$                     -$                     6,000$           -$                     -$                         
Employee Wages 281,500$               16,975$           136,707$         309,500$       24,187$           159,442$             

                          Total Personnel Expenses: 391,680$               22,268$           182,516$         416,400$       30,233$           204,030$             

Prior Year - 2013

 SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
FY 2014 MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT

July, 2014

Current Year - 2014



(Approved) (Expenditures) (Expenditures) (Approved) (Expenditures) (Expenditures)
   FY 2014  Month of July  Year to Date  FY 2013  Month of July  Year to Date - 

Prior Year 

Prior Year - 2013

 SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
FY 2014 MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT

July, 2014

Current Year - 2014

CAPITAL OUTLAY   
2" SDS Rotary Hammer (2013) -$                          -$                     -$                     1,350$           -$                     1,349$                 
Workman MDE Cart (2013) -$                          -$                     -$                     12,500$         -$                     11,886$               

                          Total Capital Outlay: -$                          -$                     -$                     13,850$         -$                     13,235$               

Total Expenses: 580,780$               31,552$           304,654$         590,642$       50,690$           337,666$             

PAYMENTS AND ASSESSMENTS RECEIVED
Assessment Income Date Rec'd: Amount: Date Rec'd: Amount:
    Payment No. 1: Feb 7, 2014 305,793$         Feb 15, 2013 299,925$             
    Payment No. 2: May 30, 2014 224,421$         Jun 10, 2013 217,111$             
    Payment No. 3: Due 28,053$           Sep 13, 2013 27,710$               
    Adjustment to Income (3) Oct. 31, 2013 2,703$                 

Reimbursement Income
From: For: Date Rec'd: Amount: Date Rec'd: Amount:
Castle & Cooke      Various Various 9,854$                 
Toro Equipment     Gate Repairs Sep 13, 2013 680$                    
Castle & Cooke     Tractor/Equipment Repairs Mar-Aug, 2014 4,204$             

Other Income
From: For: Date Rec'd: Amount: Date Rec'd: Amount:
Castle & Cooke Weed Abatement Jul-Aug, 2013 3,000$                 
Lot Owners Weed Abatement Aug, 2014 900$                Jul-Nov, 2013 2,200$                 
Lot Owners Gate Openers/Cards Jan-Jul, 2014 288$                Jan-Nov, 2013 1,326$                 
Umpqua Bank CD Interest Jan-Jul, 2014 158$                Jan-Nov, 2013 384$                    
Calaveras County Interest Received Jan-Jul, 2014 288$                Jan-Dec, 2013 516$                    
Various Other Miscellaneous Jan-Jul, 2014 14$                  Jan-Dec, 2013 55$                      
Central Life Sciences Adapco Rebate  (4) Aug 15, 2014 1,724$             

Notes
(1)   Equip Maint/Repair expenses billed to Castle & Cooke - Payment shown in Reimbursement Income
(2)   County Admin/LAFCO Fees recorded from County Auditor's Statement
(3)   Adjustment to Income made to reallocate County/LAFCO Fees and County Interest Received to their proper accounts (2013)
(4)   Net expenditures for Acct OE22 - Mosquito Control Products: 10,593$                  Budget amount available:2,907$           



Jul 31, 14

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking 432,283.80
1020 · Cash - Fund 2188 28,187.22
1080 · Umpqua Bank CD Accounts

1081 · CD #7405 25,743.13
1082 · CD #46165 25,109.57
1083 · CD #46207 25,109.57
1084 · CD #46249 25,078.86
1085 · CD #46124 25,078.86

Total 1080 · Umpqua Bank CD Accounts 126,119.99

Total Checking/Savings 586,591.01

Accounts Receivable
1200 · Accounts Receivable 1,047.08

Total Accounts Receivable 1,047.08

Total Current Assets 587,638.09

Fixed Assets
1500 · Capital Assets

1501 · Equipment 196,071.70
1503 · Roads 2,360,462.00
1504 · Easements 10,344,000.00
1505 · Buildings 79,000.00

Total 1500 · Capital Assets 12,979,533.70

1600 · Accumulated Depreciation
1601 · Equipment -175,726.94
1603 · Roads -569,656.38
1605 · Buildings -15,010.00

Total 1600 · Accumulated Depreciation -760,393.32

Total Fixed Assets 12,219,140.38

TOTAL ASSETS 12,806,778.47
LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable
2000 · Accounts Payable 14,277.23

Total Accounts Payable 14,277.23

Credit Cards
2060 · CSD Visa - MLB 1,066.90

Total Credit Cards 1,066.90

Other Current Liabilities
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 399.58
2150 · Accrued Payroll 9,290.03
2200 · Sales Tax Payable 5.58

Total Other Current Liabilities 9,695.19

Total Current Liabilities 25,039.32

Total Liabilities 25,039.32

Equity
3800 · Developer Capital Contributions 12,198,795.62
3900 · Retained Earnings 630,172.26
Net Income -47,228.73

Total Equity 12,781,739.15

4:25 PM Saddle Creek Community Services District
08/15/14 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of July 31, 2014

Page 1



Jul 31, 14

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 12,806,778.47

4:25 PM Saddle Creek Community Services District
08/15/14 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of July 31, 2014

Page 2



Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

DD 7/3/2014 Mark A. Dunlop 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

PE06 · Employee Wages -1,247.84
PE03 · Payroll Taxes -95.45
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 35.41
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 320.42

TOTAL -987.46

DD 7/3/2014 Gregory Hebard 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

PE06 · Employee Wages -3,215.63
PE03 · Payroll Taxes -246.00
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 223.03
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 1,017.52

TOTAL -2,221.08

DD 7/3/2014 HERNAN HERNANDEZ 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

PE06 · Employee Wages -882.40
PE06 · Employee Wages -55.15
PE06 · Employee Wages -33.09
PE03 · Payroll Taxes -74.26
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 20.45
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 236.46

TOTAL -787.99

DD 7/3/2014 Ralph M. McGeorge 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

PE06 · Employee Wages -1,872.67
PE03 · Payroll Taxes -143.26
2110 · Wage Garnishments Payable 103.00
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 37.18
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 427.42

TOTAL -1,448.33

DD 7/3/2014 BRADLEY D NICKELL 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

PE06 · Employee Wages -882.40
PE03 · Payroll Taxes -107.20
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 34.41
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 8.82
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 5.29
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 164.49

TOTAL -776.59

DD 7/3/2014 PHYLLIS J RICHARDS 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

PE06 · Employee Wages -120.00
PE03 · Payroll Taxes -14.58
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 4.68
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 1.20
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 0.72
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 18.36

TOTAL -109.62

DD 7/18/2014 Mark A. Dunlop 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

PE06 · Employee Wages -1,247.84
PE03 · Payroll Taxes -95.47
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 35.41

Saddle Creek Community Services District
08/15/14 Check Detail

July 2014

Page 1



Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

2100 · Payroll Liabilities 320.46

TOTAL -987.44

DD 7/18/2014 Gregory Hebard 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

PE06 · Employee Wages -3,215.63
PE03 · Payroll Taxes -245.99
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 223.02
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 1,017.50

TOTAL -2,221.10

DD 7/18/2014 Ralph M. McGeorge 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

PE06 · Employee Wages -1,872.67
PE03 · Payroll Taxes -143.26
2110 · Wage Garnishments Payable 103.00
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 37.17
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 427.42

TOTAL -1,448.34

DD 7/18/2014 BRADLEY D NICKELL 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

PE06 · Employee Wages -882.40
PE03 · Payroll Taxes -96.62
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 25.23
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 8.83
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 3.88
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 164.51

TOTAL -776.57

DD 7/18/2014 PHYLLIS J RICHARDS 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

PE06 · Employee Wages -158.04
PE03 · Payroll Taxes -19.21
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 6.17
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 1.58
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 0.95
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 24.18

TOTAL -144.37

DD 7/18/2014 HERNAN HERNANDEZ 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

PE06 · Employee Wages -970.64
PE03 · Payroll Taxes -74.25
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 20.44
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 236.44

TOTAL -788.01

P/R Fee 7/2/2014 Intuit Full Service Payroll 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

PE04 · Processing Fees -111.00

TOTAL -111.00

P/R Tax 7/9/2014 CA EDD 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

2100 · Payroll Liabilities -326.09

TOTAL -326.09

P/R Tax 7/9/2014 IRS 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

Saddle Creek Community Services District
08/15/14 Check Detail

July 2014

Page 2



Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

2100 · Payroll Liabilities -2,184.67

TOTAL -2,184.67

P/R Tax 7/21/2014 CA EDD 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

2100 · Payroll Liabilities -563.34
2100 · Payroll Liabilities -0.02
PE03 · Payroll Taxes 0.02

TOTAL -563.34

P/R Tax 7/23/2014 IRS 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

2100 · Payroll Liabilities -2,190.51

TOTAL -2,190.51

P/R Tax 7/23/2014 CA EDD 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

2100 · Payroll Liabilities -326.45

TOTAL -326.45

1573 7/3/2014 California State Disbursement Unit 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

7/3/2014 2110 · Wage Garnishments Payable -103.00

TOTAL -103.00

1574 7/15/2014 Calaveras Telephone - Internet 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

6/30/2014 OE13 · Internet Service -74.95

TOTAL -74.95

1575 7/15/2014 Calaveras Telephone Co. 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

6/30/2014 OE12 · Telephone & Pager Service -241.95

TOTAL -241.95

1576 7/15/2014 California Waste Recovery Systems 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

7/1/2014 OE18 · Landscape Supplies & Repairs -30.45

TOTAL -30.45

1577 7/15/2014 Ewing 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

Inv 8242663 6/21/2014 OE18 · Landscape Supplies & Repairs -66.47
Inv 8242664 6/21/2014 OE18 · Landscape Supplies & Repairs -141.76

TOTAL -208.23

1578 7/15/2014 Golden State Cellular 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

2419222 6/21/2014 OE12 · Telephone & Pager Service -100.14

TOTAL -100.14

1579 7/15/2014 John Deere Financial 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

06/08/14-07/10/14 7/10/2014 2070 · John Deere Financial -1,047.08

TOTAL -1,047.08

Saddle Creek Community Services District
08/15/14 Check Detail

July 2014

Page 3



Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

1580 7/15/2014 Karen F. Roberts 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

Inv 140008 6/30/2014 OE02 · Accounting & Bookkeeping -468.75

TOTAL -468.75

1581 7/15/2014 Keith Impink 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

721065 7/10/2014 OE07 · Miscellaneous/Contingency -575.00

TOTAL -575.00

1582 7/15/2014 Lake Tulloch True Value Hardware 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

05/26/14-06/25/14 6/25/2014 OE25 · Mosquito Abatement Equip Maint -28.55

TOTAL -28.55

1583 7/15/2014 MVCAC 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

Inv 7357005 6/17/2014 OE09 · Dues, Certs & Subscriptions -387.00

TOTAL -387.00

1584 7/15/2014 PG&E - 7193 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

06/10/14-07/10/14 7/10/2014 OE11 · Electric Power/Water/Sewer -312.87

TOTAL -312.87

1585 7/15/2014 SC Fuels 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

Inv 0130209 6/20/2014 OE24 · Mosquito Abate Vehicles Gas/Oil -1,082.35

TOTAL -1,082.35

1586 7/15/2014 SDRMA-Health Ins. 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

Inv 15098 7/3/2014 PE02 · Health Insurance -3,845.40

TOTAL -3,845.40

1587 7/15/2014 The Union Democrat 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

6/1-6/30/14 6/30/2014 OE09 · Dues, Certs & Subscriptions -20.30

TOTAL -20.30

1588 7/15/2014 Turf Star, Inc. 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

Inv 593352-00 6/30/2014 OE19 · Landscape Equip Repair/Replace -682.23

TOTAL -682.23

1589 7/15/2014 Valley Entry Systems, Inc. 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

Inv 20341 6/13/2014 OE16 · Gate Maint/Repair/Staff/Openers -978.25
Inv 20387 6/19/2014 OE16 · Gate Maint/Repair/Staff/Openers -548.00
Inv 20528 7/8/2014 OE16 · Gate Maint/Repair/Staff/Openers -163.00

TOTAL -1,689.25

1590 7/15/2014 Valley Farm Supply Stores, Inc. 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

H102343 6/30/2014 OE25 · Mosquito Abatement Equip Maint -1,258.84

Saddle Creek Community Services District
08/15/14 Check Detail

July 2014

Page 4



Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

TOTAL -1,258.84

1591 7/15/2014 MLB Visa 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

06/07/14-07/07/14 7/7/2014 2060 · CSD Visa - MLB -678.84

TOTAL -678.84

1592 7/18/2014 California State Disbursement Unit 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

7/18/2014 2110 · Wage Garnishments Payable -103.00

TOTAL -103.00

1594 7/30/2014 CCWD 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

05/16/14-07/15/14 7/25/2014 OE11 · Electric Power/Water/Sewer -254.02

TOTAL -254.02

SlsTx2014 7/15/2014 Board of Equalization 1000 · Umpqua Bank Checking

Board of Equalization 2200 · Sales Tax Payable -34.94
Board of Equalization 2200 · Sales Tax Payable -217.06

TOTAL -252.00

Saddle Creek Community Services District
08/15/14 Check Detail

July 2014

Page 5



Draft 
SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

MINUTES FOR THE MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

July 15, 2014 
 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 The Saddle Creek Community Services District (CSD) Board of Directors held 
their monthly meeting on Tuesday July 15, 2014.  President Lazarus called the meeting 
to order at 2:00 PM in the Members Lounge and led Directors and staff in the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
ROLL CALL: Roll call indicated the following directors were present:  

President:    Kent Lazarus    
Vice President:  Scott Baker 
Director    Darlene DeBaldo 
Director    Sue Russ 
Director    Charlie Robinson 

        
 Staff:  The following staff members were present:  
   General Manager  Peter Kampa      

Site Manager:   Greg Hebard 
         Clerk/Treasurer:  Phyllis Richards 
 
 Public: Castle & Cooke  Dave Haley 
    
 
CHANGES TO THE ORDER OF AGENDA:   

None suggested. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 
 None 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be 
acted upon by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a 
member of the Board, Staff or a member of the public requests specific items to be set 
aside for separate action. 
 
a.  Approval of General Manager services contract - Kampa Community Solutions, 

LLC. 
 
The General Manager search Ad-Hoc Committee and Board of Directors has completed 
its evaluation of candidates, issued an employment offer and has received acceptance 
of that offer by Kampa Community Solutions, LLC.   The Board approved the contract 
with Kampa Community Solutions, LLC as presented. 



 
b.  Review of monthly financial report and approval of bills and claims for the month 

of June 2014. 
 
c.  Approval of the minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of June 17, 2014. 
 
Motion by Director Robinson and Second by Director Baker to move approval of 
items a, b and c of the Consent Agenda. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE: (Board will briefly address/respond/refer) 
 
 None.  
 
  
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
a.  Update report by District staff on Calaveras County Water District (CCWD) 

  Mandatory Phase 3 Water Conservation. 
 
General Manager Kampa summarized the written report presented to the Board 
regarding the fact that the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) has issued 
a directive to permitted water right holders, requiring that all surface water diversions be 
terminated. Calaveras County Water District (CCWD) received such a directive, but due 
to the fact that surface water is their only source of water supply for many of the 
communities it serves, they were able to exempt certain levels of water diversions by 
submitting a strict water conservation compliance plan. Included in this agenda item for 
discussion at the meeting was a copy of the email sent to the Board on July 9, 2014.  
The purpose of this agenda item was to provide an update to the Board and community 
on the potential impact of water supply cutbacks on our operations and facilities; as well 
as to convey the cooperative efforts of the golf course and CCWD. 
 
Site Manager Greg Hebard stated that we are currently lower than the 35% reduction 
required by CCWD and that although we are still making pond adjustments, our 
systems are staying healthy. 
 
President Lazarus wanted to know if digging wells would be a possibility.  Mr. Haley 
stated that there is no ground water in this area in fact the wells are drying up. 

 
b.  Final report and abolishment of the interim District Management and General 

 Manager Search Committees. 
 
The Board of Directors had previously established two Ad-hoc committees to ensure the 
proper management of the day to day affairs of the District during the time period when 
no General Manager was present, and to select a candidate to serve as the 
replacement General Manager. The committees have now completed their task and 



provided a closing report on their activities. The new General Manager selected, Peter 
J. Kampa was introduced to the Board by the Committee. 
 
President Lazarus and Site Manager Hebard thanked Directors Russ and Baker for all 
their help.  The Board then abolished the committees. 
 
Director Russ said that the only thing that is left to do is to get a new visa card for the 
CSD.  We currently have one with Mother Load Bank; however we have moved all of 
our accounts to Umpqua Bank.  She will turn this item over to GM Kampar for handling.   

 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
a. Review/Discussion of the 2013 independent Audit Report prepared by Larry 

Bain, CPA; who will be in attendance at the August meeting for clarification and 
questions. 

 
An annual audit of the District's financial statements is completed pursuant to the 
requirements of State law.  Larry Bain, CPA was engaged to conduct the audit for the 
2013 calendar year, and the draft audit was included in the Board’s agenda packet for 
advance review.  Mr. Bain will be in attendance to further discuss the audit and answer 
questions during the August 2014 Board meeting.   
 
Manager Kampa stated that commendations to staff are appropriate as the financial 
statements appear to be in good order, with no material weaknesses noted. The 
deficiencies stated in the audit report are not uncommon for smaller special districts and 
management will propose to the Board a slate of actions to remedy any deficiencies as 
necessary and appropriate. 
 
Director DeBaldo wanted to know what Peter’s experience with Federal Unemployment 
Tax has been.  He indicated that he has never heard of a district paying that tax.  The 
Board discussed briefly the need for an updated expense reimbursement policy.  
Kampa will propose such a policy for Board consideration.   GM Kampa will discuss the 
Board’s concerns with Larry Bain. 
 
Mr. Haley stated that he would like to have the Reserve Funds identified and to know 
how much is funded, and what is the balance.  GM Kampa stated that he is not sure 
what steps the Board has taken to set up Reserve Funds.   
 
Director Russ believes that the money that we currently have is to run the district, and 
when we are completely built out we should have enough funds for the reserve.   
 
GM Kampa stated that there are good reserve guidelines and the Board can adopt a 
policy, however there might not be funds to support it.  He will review the documentation 
and get back to the Board.  
 



Director Robinson stated that we are not subject to the Gann limit, and it is shown on 
the audit.  He would like to have this item corrected.  Kampa will review the matter with 
Auditor Bain.  
 
b.  Discussion/Action regarding amendment to the District's Conflict of Interest code 

 pursuant to California Government Code Section 83700 et seq. 
 
State law requires that the District issue a report on its Conflict of Interest Code every 
two years in even numbered years. The District last considered update to its Code in 
20l2 and update consideration is now necessary.  A copy of the current Conflict of 
Interest Code was distributed to the Board during the meeting. The purpose of the Code 
is to ensure that the District is operated and managed in an ethical manner, consistent 
with the many applicable laws and standards.   The Code must be amended when 
circumstances change such as modified employee or Board responsibilities, or 
contracting for management services versus hiring regular employees; both of which 
have occurred recently at the District. Brief discussion was held on proposed Code 
amendments, with Kampa directed to return with a final version to be placed on the 
August 2014 agenda for approval. 
 
GM Kampa stated that he will have to review our Conflict of Interest Code.  There are 
certain requirements that have to be met.  He will put this information together for the 
Board’s review and if it needs legal review he will also have this done.  
 
Motion by Director Robinson and Second by Director Russ to move approval of 
GM Kampa’s review of the Conflict of Interest Code, and when completed he will 
present a policy proposal to the Board.    Motion passed unanimously. 

 
c.  Discussion/Action regarding the process and schedule for establishment of 

District priorities and supporting management objectives for the General 
Manager.   

  
In a written report to the Board, Kampa described the importance of setting goals to 
guide the district and creating objectives that are clearly defined and measurable; for 
both the performance of the District and General Manager.  President Lazarus would 
like to set up a task force with one of the directors and GM Kampa.  He suggested 
Director DeBaldo meet with GM Kampa to come up with a list of goals and objectives 
for the new general manager.  Director DeBaldo had no objections and agreed to be 
part of the task force. 
 
The Board proposed to conduct a public hearing to discuss the goal and objectives for 
the district.    President Lazarus would like a report back to the Board within 60-90 days.    
GM Kampa will have a report ready to present to the Board in the September or 
October Board Meeting. 

 
d.  Discussion/Action regarding waiver of compensation due to directors for 

 attendance at the special meetings of May 13, 2014 and June 17 and 20, 2014. 
 



The Board held vibrant discussion regarding the remuneration made available to 
directors for meeting attendance and the level of effort to prepare for and attend 
meetings.  There was sentiment both to waive the receipt of compensation and to 
receive it.  
 
Motion by Director Robinson and Second by Director DeBaldo to move approval 
of waiving the compensation due the directors for attendance in the three (3) 
special meeting of May 13, 2014 and June 17 and 20, 2014. Following extensive 
discussion, no vote was taken on the Motion and GM Kampa was directed to write 
a 1st draft of a new policy regarding Board meeting compensation.    

  
 
STAFF REPORTS: 
 
a.   Site Manager:  He would like permission from the Board to fill the Maintenance 1 
position, which was given.  
 
b.   General Manager:  He is very excited about this opportunity to serve as General 
Manager.  He feels that everyone is doing a good job. 
 
This is the 1st year that he will be an instructor for the CSDA (California Special Districts 
Association) Leadership Academy.   This is once a year and it will be in conflict with our 
November Board meeting and he is hoping that the Board will reschedule this meeting.    
The Board was favorable to such a change and will make a decision as we get closer to 
the date.   
 
Kampa will be attending the annual CSDA Conference in Palm Springs at the end of 
September at his own expense.   
 
There is going to be a funding fair he will be attending on October 9, 2014 and invited 
directors to attend as well.  CA Financing Coordination Committee will have State and 
Federal Agencies available to discuss funding of any projects that we have planned in 
our community.   

 
DIRECTORS REPORTS: 

 
President Lazarus – He again thanked Directors Russ and Baker, and Directors 
Robinson and Lazarus for doing such a good job with the Ad-Hoc Committees. 
 
V/President Baker – None 
 
Secretary Robinson – None 

 
Director Russ – None 

 
Director DeBaldo – Will miss next month’s meeting. 

 



ADJOURNMENT – Having no further business, President Lazarus adjourned the 
meeting at 3:23PM. CSD’s next board meeting date is August 19, 2014. 
 
 
 
_________________________________    
Phyllis Richards, CSD Clerk/Treasurer       
 
 
 
_________________________________     
Peter Kampa, General Manager 
 
  
            
APPROVED BY:  
 
 
___________________________ 
Kent Lazarus, Board President 
        
 
 
___________________________       SEAL 
Scott Baker, V/President 



Saddle Creek Community Services District 

Regular Meeting of August 19, 2014 

 
AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA 

 
7.  OLD BUSINESS 

a. Discussion/Action regarding acceptance of the 2013 independent Audit Report prepared by 
Larry Bain, CPA 

 
Background 
An annual audit of the District’s financial statements is completed pursuant to the requirements of State 
law. Larry Bain, CPA was engaged to conduct the audit for the 2013 calendar year, and the draft audit 
was distributed last month for public review.  This agenda item is to receive additional information on 
the audit, and for its acceptance by the Board.  Mr. Bain will be in attendance to discuss the audit and 
answer questions from the Board and public during this meeting.      
 
During the July 15, 2014 Board meeting, the Board briefly discussed each deficiency listed and 
expressed the following concerns with the audit as prepared: 

1. Internal Controls over Financial Reporting – The Board felt that we have diversified the financial 
duties to the maximum extent feasible with our small staff.  The Board feels as though there are 
adequate controls in place to have confidence in the accuracy of the financial reports and to 
avoid embezzlement and other related problems.  Board members would like these deficiencies 
removed from the audit, if possible.   

2. Compliance with the Gann Limit – Members of the Board felt as though we were exempt from 
Gann Limit reporting due to the fact that our Special Tax funding approved in 2001 allows for 
automatic increases. The need for including the Gann limit in the audit was questioned.  It has 
since been confirmed that we are indeed subject to Gann Limit reporting, but this calculation will 
in reality have no effect on the amount of our special tax levy or the funding we have available.   

3. Classification of staff as exempt – Board members familiar with the operation stated that the 
Maintenance Supervisor was expected to assume the management and administrative 
responsibilities of the Site Manager on a regular basis; exercised independent authority and 
judgment and therefore the exempt classification is justified.   

 
One of the primary duties of the Board is their fiduciary responsibility with regard to District finances.  
The Board must establish policies and ensure that the procedures and practices of District management 
provide the highest level of protection of public funds, and that these funds are invested in appropriate 
activities and means to achieve the level of service desired by the community, through this Board. The 
only way for the Board to confirm that this is occurring is to receive accurate and timely financial 
reporting.   
 
In addition to our legal requirement to have an audit conducted, this review of District finances and 
internal controls serves as an independent, third party look at management and provides the Board and 
management with information to confirm or raise concern regarding whether there are gaps in our 



policies or systems that could, if they were in place, avoid to the maximum extent feasible 
embezzlement or other fraudulent activity.   
 
None of the deficiencies reported by Mr. Bain negatively affect our financial position, bonding or 
borrowing capabilities.  Simply put, Mr. Bain tests our financial practices using various general and 
government accounting standards and if we do not meet the standard in his professional opinion, he then 
is required to report such in the Audit report to the Board.  The statement regarding lack of separation of 
duties is common among all small districts with limited staffing, and I agree we do separate 
responsibilities very well.  
 
The Board’s primary concern should be with whether or not Material Weaknesses exist in our financial 
systems, as defined in the audit report.  In Mr. Bain’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial 
Reporting beginning on Page 18, he reports that no such material weaknesses were discovered in his 
review of our financial statements.  The Board would have been expected to act swiftly to remedy any 
material weaknesses, but since none were reported, the comparative deficiencies identified are provided 
to assist the Board in evaluating financial risk and if determined necessary, future policy development.   
 
I viewed this audit as a positive reflection of the Board and District management, and with some new 
policies developed, all deficiencies will be addressed by next year’s audit.  Considering the Board’s 
stated concerns with deficiencies contained within the audit, staff recommends that we file a formal 
Board response to the Audit. Our response should address the deficiencies reported by Mr. Bain and 
describe our position in agreement or disagreement, as well as our planned response to address each 
concern raised. This Audit response will then be presented to the firm conducting the 2014 audit, for 
their consideration.   
 
Recommended Motion 
I move to accept the 2013 Audit Report prepared by Larry Bain and direct staff to prepare an audit 
response letter on behalf of the Board; that will be approved at the September 2014 Board meeting.     
 













































Saddle Creek Community Services District 

Regular Meeting of August 19, 2014 

 
AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA 

 
7.  OLD BUSINESS 

b. Update report by District staff of the Impact of Drought and Mandatory Water Conservation on District 
Operations 

 
Background 
District staff has done a fantastic job working with the water supply being made available to us due to the 
drought and mandatory water delivery restrictions placed on CCWD by the state.  Of great benefit to our 
services has been the positive working relationship with both Castle & Cook, and the golf course.  Working 
within these water restrictions and meeting the expectations of our community can be tense at times, but overall 
there has been a thorough understanding and respect among the parties of the needs and interests of all.   
 
As a matter of information, CCWD delivers water to our community under a state permitted appropriative water 
right. In June, the state for the first time in history issued a demand to permitted water rights holders to cease all 
unnecessary diversions from surface waters.  CCWD had a week to respond regarding how this was to be 
accomplished, which they did.  Their response resulted in a cutback of 35% in water deliveries to the golf 
course, which in turn affected our water deliveries the same.  I have determined that water deliveries to our 
wetlands is not optional and in fact is required for compliance with the various state and federal permits under 
which we operate.   
 
The state mandate did not instruct CCWD on how to deal specifically with the cutbacks; that decision was left 
to CCWD’s management and Board.  In conversations with colleagues at the State Water Board, they offered to 
issue assurance to CCWD that no action would be taken against them for delivering the water needed, as 
determined by our staff for our permit compliance.  The state is primarily concerned with unlawful waste and 
unreasonable use of water, and does not intent to strictly enforce actions against districts such as CCWD, if they 
do not meet their water conservation goals or mandates.  This should provide CCWD and our community 
partners with a level of relief regarding operations over the next month or so.  We are prepared to raise this 
issue with the CCWD management or Board if necessary to ensure that our community is not unnecessarily 
damaged.   
 
Recommendation 
For discussion only    
 



Saddle Creek Community Services District 

Regular Meeting of August 19, 2014 

 
AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA 

 
7.  OLD BUSINESS 

c. Approval of a Resolution amending and adopting the District’s Conflict of Interest Code pursuant to 
California Government Code Section 83700 et seq 

 
Background 
We have received notification from Calaveras Conty that we are required to consider whether or not updates to 
our Conflict of Interest Code is required.  At the July  15, 2014 Board meeting, you were provided a copy of our 
current 16 page Code, as it was originally adopted in 1996.    
 
As directed, staff has developed and included with this agenda a draft revised Conflict of Interest Code for your 
consideration.  In preparation of this revised Code, the policies of many Districts throughout the state were 
reviewed.  The County of Santa Clara issued to its special districts a guidance document, attached, which 
describes the necessary Code content and recommended form policy to be adopted by its agencies.  This 
guidance recommends the adoption of a policy that incorporates by reference the provisions of Fair Political 
Practices Commission (FPPC) Regulation 18730 in the text of the policy, rather than listing all of the complex 
provisions of this law in the adopted policy text.  
 
Further, with our policy adopting FPPC 18370 by reference, when this law is amended over time, our policy 
remains legally consistent and does not require frequent modification.   
 
In the draft policy, all directors and all consultants are required to file Form 700, Conflict of Interest Statements 
with the District, who will in turn file the original with the County Clerk.  The policy contains a relatively 
detailed description of the work performed for the District by consultants that would require them to file Form 
700s.  For our District currently, the General Manager, Bookkeeper and all Board Members are required to file 
Form 700s within 1 month of election or appointment, annually and within one month of leaving office.    
 
Following approval by our Board, the Policy/Code will be transmitted to the County for their approval and 
filing.   
 
Recommended Motion 
I move to approve Resolution ___, 2014, amending and adopting the District’s Conflict of Interest Code 
pursuant to California Government Code Section 83700 et seq.    
 



RESOLUTION ___, 2014 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SADDLE CREEK 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT AMENDING THE DISTRICT’S CONFLICT OF 

INTEREST CODE PURSUANT TO THE POLITICAL REFORM ACT OF 1974 

WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of California has enacted the Political Reform act 
of 1974, Government Code Section 81000 et. Seq. (Act), which requires all public agencies, 
including but not limited to the Saddle Creek Community Services District (District) to 
adopt and keep updated a conflict of interest code; and 

WHEREAS, the District has a Conflict of Interest Code which has been reviewed on a 
biennial basis and was last amended December 16, 1996 and which now requires updating; 
and 

WHEREAS, the regulations implementing the Act provide that the District may adopt the 
terms of 2 Cal. Code of Regulations Section 18730  in order to adopt a conflict of interest 
code which will be self-updating as the regulations are updated; and 

WHEREAS, at the same time as the District adopts Section 18730, the District must also 
update and adopt a designation of employees covered by the conflict of interest code and the 
disclosure categories for each employee as set out in Appendix A to this Policy adopting 
Section 18730 by reference; and 

WHEREAS, such designation and disclosures for each designated employee and Consultant 
are set out in the Appendix to this Policy; and 

WHEREAS, the designated employees shall file forms with the District's Board Secretary, 
who shall maintain a file copy in the District office and forward the original to the Calaveras 
County Clerk of the Board; and 

WHEREAS, the potential penalties for violation of the provisions of the Act are substantial 
and may include criminal and civil liability, as well as equitable relief which could result in 
the District being restrained or prevented from acting in cases where the provisions of the 
Act may have been violated; and 

WHEREAS, notice of the time and place of the District Board meeting and of consideration 
by the Board of the proposed amended Conflict of Interest Code has been provided to each 
designated employee and publicly posted for review on the District website, in the District 
office and in the customary agenda packet distribution location. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the District does 
hereby amend and adopt the Conflict of Interest Code as presented. 

  



 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the said amended Conflict of Interest Code shall 
become effective on September 1, 2014 and that the Board Secretary shall provide a copy of 
such Code to the Calaveras County Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, the code reviewing 
body. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Saddle Creek Community Services 
District on August 19, 2014 by the following vote: 

 

 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSTAIN: 

 ABSENT:      ATTEST: 

 

______________________________                               _______________________________ 
Kent Lazarus, President     Phyllis Richards, Board Secretary 

Board of Directors 



 SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
Policy and Procedure Manual 

 
POLICY TITLE:  Conflict of Interest Code 
POLICY NUMBER: 1020 
ADOPTED:   
AMENDED: 
 
1020. The Political Reform Act (Government Code section 8100, et seq.) requires state and 
local government agencies to adopt and promulgate conflict of interest codes.  The Fair 
Political Practices Commission has adopted a regulation (2 California Code of Regulations 
section 18730) which contains the terms of a standard conflict of interest code, which can be 
incorporated by reference in an agency's code.  After public notice and hearings it may be 
amended by the Fair Political Practices Commission to conform to amendments in the 
Political Reform Act. 
 
Therefore, the terms of 2 California Code of Regulations section 18730 and any amendments 
to it duly adopted by the Fair Political Practices Commission are hereby incorporated by 
reference. This regulation and the text here designating officials and establishing disclosure 
categories, shall constitute the conflict of interest code of the Saddle Creek Community 
Services District.  
 

1020.1. The full text of Section 18730, together with any amendments thereto, may 
be found at: .http://www.fopc.ca.gov/legal/regs/current/l 8730.pdf . 

 
1020.2. Designated positions shall file statements of economic interest with the 

agency.  Upon receipt of the statements, the agency shall make and retain a copy 
and forward the original of this statement to the Tuolumne County Clerk of the 
Board of Supervisors.  Statements of Economic Interest are public records available 
for public inspection. 

 
1020.3. DESIGNATED POSITIONS:  The designated positions listed below are 

required to file Form 700 Statements of Economic Interest disclosing certain 
personal financial interests.  These positions are required to file the applicable 
individual schedules reporting investments, business  positions, and sources of 
income located in or doing business in the agency's jurisdiction and interests in real 
property located in the agency's jurisdiction. 

 
 

Designated  Positions Disclosure  Category 
Member, Board of Directors 1 

Consultants 2 

 
  

SCCSD Conflict of Interest Policy                                                                                                              Page 1 of 2 
 

http://www.fopc.ca.gov/legal/regs/current/l%208730.pdf


1020.4. DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES: 
1020.4.1. Disclosure Category 1: Persons in this category shall disclose all 

interests in real property, as well as investments, business positions and sources 
of income, including gifts, loans and travel payments. 

1020.4.2. Disclosure Category 2:  Consultants shall disclose pursuant to the 
broadest disclosure category in the conflict of interest code subject to the 
following limitation: The District may determine in writing that a particular 
consultant, although a "designated position," is hired to perform a range of duties 
that is limited in scope and thus is not required to comply fully with the disclosure 
requirements of the broadest disclosure category, but instead must comply with 
more tailored disclosure requirements specific to that consultant.  Such a 
determination shall include a description of the consultant's duties and, based 
upon that description, a statement of the extent of disclosure requirements.  All 
such determinations are public records and shall be retained for public inspection 
along with this conflict of interest code. 

1020.5. For purposes of Category 2, a "consultant" is an individual who, pursuant to a 
contract with a state or local government agency, makes a governmental decision 
whether to: 

1020.5.1. Approve a rate, rule, or regulation; 
1020.5.2. Adopt or enforce a law; 
1020.5.3. Issue, deny, suspend, or revoke any permit, license, application, 

certificate, approval, order, or similar authorization or entitlement; 
1020.5.4. Authorize the agency to enter into, modify, or renew a contract provided 

it is the type of contract that requires agency approval; 
1020.5.5. Grant agency approval to a contract that requires agency approval and to 

which the agency is a party, or to the specifications for such a contract; 
1020.5.6. Grant agency approval to a plan, design, report, study, or similar item; 
1020.5.7. Adopt, or grant agency approval of, policies, standards, or guidelines for 

the agency, or for any subdivision thereof; or 
1020.5.8. A consultant is also an individual who, pursuant to a contract with the 

district, serves in a staff capacity with the district and in that capacity 
participates in making a governmental decision as defined in regulation 
18702.2 or performs the same or substantially all the same duties for the 
district that would otherwise be performed by an individual holding a 
position specified in the district's Conflict of Interest Code under 
Government Code section 87302. 

SCCSD Conflict of Interest Policy                                                                                                              Page 2 of 2 
 



 

County of Santa Clara    Page 1 of 5 
Eight Questions to Ask for the 2014 Biennial Review  
of Your agency’s Conflict of Interest Code 

County of Santa Clara 
Eight Questions to Ask for the 2014 Biennial Review  

of Your agency’s Conflict of Interest Code 
 
Background Reference 
 

• Your agency’s conflict of interest code (“code”) consists of 3 parts: 
o Text of the Code (incorporation of Regulation 18730). 
o List of Designated Positions, with Each Position Assigned to One Disclosure Category 
o List of Disclosure Categories 

 
• Whenever your agency updates its conflict of interest code, it must send the updated code to 

the Santa Clara County Office of the County Counsel for Board of Supervisors’ approval.  The 
Government Code specifies that a local agency’s code update is not effective until approved by 
the code-reviewing body, which is the County Board of Supervisors for your agency.  If your 
agency has updated its code but did not send it to the Office of the County Counsel for Board 
of Supervisors’ approval, the revisions are not effective by law.   

 
• For responding to the questions listed below, you must use the code version last approved by 

the County Board of Supervisors.  A copy of your agency’s last Board of Supervisors-approved 
code (County-approved code) was included in the packet of materials sent to your agency.   

 
Some Important Things to Remember 
 

• The Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC), the state agency that enforces the Political 
Reform Act, recommends that agencies incorporate FPPC Regulation 18730 by reference for 
the text of the agency’s code because the type of information required to be in the main body 
of the code is quite complex and Regulation 18730 contains all of these provisions. The 
FPPC amends the regulation to include legislative and regulatory changes; therefore, by 
incorporating the Regulation, this component of an agency’s code is automatically in 
compliance. 
 

• The code may also include a link to the text of Regulation 18730 on the FPPC’s website.  
However, the code should not include the full text of Regulation 18730, either as part of the 
code or as an attachment.  Because Regulation 18730 is updated by the FPPC regularly, any 
text included or attached to an agency’s code will become out-of-date.  On the other hand, a 
link will connect to the most current version of Regulation 18730 and remain current. 
 

• In addition to incorporating Regulation 18730, the text of each agency’s code must provide 
information on where statements are to be filed – i.e., with the Filing Official of the agency. 

 
• The text of each agency’s code must also make it clear that Statements of Economic Interests 

are public records subject to the disclosure requirements of Government Code section 81008. 
 

• Each agency’s code must have a list of designated positions.  As part of the biennial review, 
each agency is expected to review its list of designated positions for any updates needed.  
This review process should include reviewing current organizational charts and current job 
duty statements to determine which positions need to be designated and which do not.  Each 



 

County of Santa Clara    Page 2 of 5 
Eight Questions to Ask for the 2014 Biennial Review  
of Your agency’s Conflict of Interest Code 

agency is responsible for ensuring that it adequately differentiates between designated 
employees with different powers and responsibilities.  (1) High level positions that have 
authority to vote on a matter, appoint a person, obligate or commit his or her agency to a 
course of action, or enter into any contractual agreement on behalf of his or her agency, (2) 
mid-level positions that have authority to negotiate decisions on behalf of the agency without 
significant substantive review, and (3) positions that advise or make recommendations to the 
decision-maker by conducting research or an investigation, preparing or presenting a report, 
analysis or opinion that requires the exercise of judgment on the part of the employee and the 
employee is attempting to influence the decision, should all be designated in the conflict-of-
interest code.  Positions that are strictly manual, clerical, or ministerial in nature should not 
be designated in the conflict-of-interest code. 

 
• Each designated position must only be assigned to one disclosure category. 
 
• Each designated position must be listed in singular form (no matter how many individuals 

may hold that position title).   
o Example: Board Member, not Board Members 
o Example: Principal, not Principals 

 
• Each designated position should be listed separately, as it is used by the individual(s) in the 

position.  
o For example, if your agency has both “member” and “alternate member”, these 

should be listed as separate designated positions on separate lines in your list of 
designated positions.   

 
• For school districts: many school districts follow the CSBA template for their conflict of 

interest code.  Please note that the list of designated positions in the CSBA template are just 
examples and should not be used to supersede your district’s list of designated positions in 
your last County-approved code.  The list of designated positions in your district’s last 
County-approved code should reflect the actual position titles of your district and meet the 
above requirements regarding singular form and listing of separate position titles.  
Additionally, school districts will need to modify the CSBA template, as necessary, to 
conform to the rules outlined here. 
 

• Each disclosure category must specify which economic interests (investments, income 
(including gifts, loans, and travel payments), business positions, and interests in real 
property) and what sources of those interests must be disclosed.     
 

• Every agency’s code must have “consultant” as a designated position, assigned to a disclosure 
category that specifies the regulatory rule regarding consultants’ disclosure.  This must be 
listed even if your agency currently does not have any consultants.   

 
• Every agency’s code must have a section describing the disclosure requirements and process 

for handling “newly created positions” that are pending addition to the agency’s conflict of 
interest code. 

 
If your agency’s code update does not meet these requirements, the County may request edits 
before your agency’s code amendment can be submitted for code-reviewing body approval. 



 

County of Santa Clara    Page 3 of 5 
Eight Questions to Ask for the 2014 Biennial Review  
of Your agency’s Conflict of Interest Code 

Eight Questions to Ask for the 2014 Conflict of Interest Code Review: 
 
1. Has the Office of the County Counsel identified any amendments required to your last 

County-approved code in the biennial review message sent to your agency? 
 

A. If the answer is yes, these updates must be included as part of your agency’s 2014 code 
update. 

 
2. Does your agency need to update any of the text portion (any text outside the list of 

designated positions and disclosure categories) of your agency’s code since your 
agency’s last County-approved code? 

 
A. If the answer is yes, the text revision must be included as part of your agency’s 2014 code 

update. 
 
3. Has your agency created any new positions or identified any existing positions, since 

your agency’s last County-approved code, that make or participate in the making of 
governmental decisions that may foreseeably have a material effect on a position 
holder’s financial interests?  For example, have the job duties of a position changed to 
the extent that the position was not previously designated, but now should be 
designated? 

 
A. If the answer is yes, and those positions are not included in the list of designated 

positions in your agency’s last County-approved code, those positions must be added to 
the list of designated positions in your agency’s 2014 code update. 

 
 Note: It does not matter if a position is currently vacant.  If the position title exists in 

your agency structure and should be designated, the position title must be reflected in the 
list of designated positions in your agency’s code. 

 
As a reminder, the following positions should be designated: 
 

o Positions that have authority to vote on a matter, appoint a person, obligate or commit the 
agency to a course of action, or enter into any contractual agreement on behalf of the agency. 

 

o Positions that have authority to negotiate decisions on behalf of the agency, without 
significant substantive review. 

 

o Positions that advise or make recommendations to the decision-maker by conducting 
research or an investigation, preparing or presenting a report, analysis or opinion that 
requires the exercise of judgment on the part of the position-holder and the position-
holder is attempting to influence the decision.  If a superior relies on an individual’s 
professional judgment, then the individual is participating in making a governmental 
decision.  In other words, if the individual influences the final decision by supporting 
a position or suggesting a course of action, he/she is participating in the decision even 
if he/she is not making the final decision. 

 
 Note: Positions that manage public investments, as defined in 2 Cal. Code Regs 

§ 18701(b), are required to file pursuant to the disclosure requirements specified in Gov. 
Code § 87200.  These positions should not be included in the list of designated positions 



 

County of Santa Clara    Page 4 of 5 
Eight Questions to Ask for the 2014 Biennial Review  
of Your agency’s Conflict of Interest Code 

in your agency’s code, but should instead be listed under a separate section of your code 
titled, “Government Code § 87200 Filers.”  This only applies to positions that meet the 
narrow definition as listed in the law; you should consult your agency’s counsel if you 
have questions as to whether any positions meet this definition. 

 
4.  Has your agency abolished any positions that are currently listed under the list of 

designated positions on your agency’s last County-approved code?   
 

A. If the answer is yes, those abolished positions must be removed from the list of 
designated positions in your agency’s 2014 code update. 

 
Note: This does not mean the position is vacant; this means the position no longer exists 
in your agency structure.  Even if a position is currently vacant, if the position title exists 
in your agency and it should be designated, it must be listed in the list of designated 
positions in your agency’s code. 

 
5. Has your agency identified any designated positions on your agency’s last County-

approved code that should not be designated because they do not meet the definition of 
making or participating in making governmental decisions, as discussed above? 

 
A. If the answer is yes, those positions should be removed from the list of designated 

positions in your agency’s 2014 code update. 
 

Note: This does not mean the position is vacant; if the position title exists in your agency 
and it should be designated, it must be listed in the list of designated positions. 

 
6. Has your agency revised the title of any positions that are currently listed under the list 

of designated positions on your agency’s last County-approved code? 
 

A. If the answer is yes, those position titles must be revised in the list of designated positions 
in your agency’s 2014 code update. 

 
7.   Does your agency need to add a disclosure category or revise any of its existing 

disclosure categories, as listed on your agency’s last County-approved code, to 
accurately capture the disclosure obligations of your designated positions? 

 
A. If the answer is yes, the disclosure category revisions must be reflected in your agency’s 

2014 code update. 
 
 Note: Each disclosure category must specify which economic interests (investments, 

income (including gifts, loans, and travel payments), business positions, and interests in 
real property) and what sources of those interests must be disclosed.     

 
8. Does any designated position need to be assigned to a different disclosure category 

instead of the one it is currently assigned to on your agency’s last County-approved 
code? 

 
A. If the answer is yes, the assigned disclosure category for the designated position must be 

revised in your agency’s 2014 code update. 
 



 

County of Santa Clara    Page 5 of 5 
Eight Questions to Ask for the 2014 Biennial Review  
of Your agency’s Conflict of Interest Code 

Note: Remember, each position can only be assigned to one disclosure category.  Each 
designated position should be assigned to a disclosure category that requires disclosure of 
economic interests and the sources of those interests that relate to the position’s job duties. 
Overbroad disclosure should be avoided. 

 
If you answered “yes” to ANY of the questions above: 
 

If you answered yes to any of the questions above, the law provides that you must update your 
agency’s code in 2014.  Please follow the below steps and timelines: 
 

1. Complete the 2014 Biennial Notice Form, indicating “an amendment is required” 
for your agency’s code this year, mark the applicable checkboxes, sign and submit 
to Kim Forrester in the Office of the County Counsel by September 1, 2014. 

 
2. Prepare an amended code and complete the “List of Amendments to Code Since Last 

County-Approved Code.”  
 
3. Prior to agendizing the code amendment for your agency board’s approval, 

email the proposed amended code and “List of Amendments” to Kim Forrester 
(kim.forrester@cco.sccgov.org) in the Office of the County Counsel for preliminary 
review.  Please allow up to 2 weeks for turnaround time of the preliminary review.  
This preliminary review is required to avoid any edits needed after your agency has 
already taken it to your agency board for approval.   

 
If the Office of the County Counsel notes that edits are needed, we will advise you to 
make those edits before you take the code amendment to your agency board.  This 
saves your agency time. 
 

4. Following County Counsel’s preliminary review and response to your agency, make 
any necessary edits and then submit the amended code to your agency board for 
approval.   

 
5. Once your agency board has approved the amended code, submit the amended 

code with date of your agency board’s approval, and final “List of Amendments” 
to Kim Forrester (kim.forrester@cco.sccgov.org) in the Office of the County 
Counsel by November 30, 2014.  The Office of the County Counsel will then 
submit the code to the County Board of Supervisors for code-reviewing body 
approval.  Your code amendment is not effective by law until approved by the 
County Board of Supervisors. 

 
6. Your agency’s Form 700 Filing Official will receive instructions on how to input 

the biennial updates into eDisclosure – e.g., adding new position titles, removing 
position titles, and indicating position title changes.   

 
If you answered “no” to ALL of the questions above: 

 

Complete the 2014 Biennial Notice Form, indicating that “no amendment is required” to 
your agency’s code, sign and submit to Kim Forrester in the Office of the County 
Counsel by September 1, 2014.  A Biennial Notice Form must be submitted even if your 
agency determines that no amendments are required.   



Saddle Creek Community Services District 

Regular Meeting of August 19, 2014 

 
AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA 

 
8.  NEW BUSINESS 

a. Discussion/Action regarding participation in the Tuolumne-Stanislaus Integrated Regional Water 
Management Plan, Watershed Advisory Committee and Joint Powers Authority 

 
Background 
The Tuolumne-Stanislaus Integrated Regional Water Management Plan, or IRWMP is a very 
comprehensive planning document prepared by and for the benefit of local water resource management 
interests.  The purpose of the plan is to establish a local/regional process by which water resources 
conflicts are identified and resolved, and water, wastewater and environmental projects are strategically 
integrated together to address a broad community of resource interests.   
 
The IRWMP also contains a structure and process for prioritizing projects that benefit the water 
resources of the region.  Due to the fact that by its very nature, the IRWMP process resolves local water 
resources conflict and represents broadly supported projects, the state is beginning more and more to use 
the IRWMP as the vehicle to award grants for projects that affect water resources.  For example, the 
most recent water bond, Proposition 84 (2002), had $1 Billion for IRWMP projects and the water bond 
on the November 2014 ballot contains an additional $810 million specifically for IRWMP projects. 
Adoption of the regional IRWMP is necessary for our participation in the group and to access grant 
funds.  
 
As an agency that manages both water resources, environmental mitigation, wetlands management, as 
well as roads and storm drains which can contribute to localized flooding and water quality impacts, we 
are a logical participant in the an IRWMP.  The boundaries of the Tuolumne-Stanislaus Region contain 
our district. The IRWMP is made up of a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) which is the ultimate 
decisionmaking authority, and a Watershed Advisory Committee (WAC) through which all JPA actions 
and decisions flow.  The WAC makes recommendations to the JPA Board for approval.  We can 
participate in the WAC, the JPA or both.  The cost, advantages and disadvantages of each are discussed 
below: 
 

1. Participate on the Watershed Advisory Committee only – Cost $100.  This would allow us to 
participate in the detailed planning discussions including proposing our projects for integration 
or as standalone projects.  Participation in the WAC requires approval by our Board and 
delegation of an individual and an alternate to attend monthly meetings in Sonora; three hours 
each.  The advantage is the ability to influence decisions and low cost.  The disadvantage is 
without a seat on the JPA, we do not have a final vote in the approval of decisions.   

2. Participation in the JPA – Cost to join in October = $8000 and in December = $5300.  The 
advantage is being able to vote on our projects and others, and the disadvantage is cost.   



3. Participation on both the JPA and WAC – Cost $8100/$5400.  It is recommended that if the 
Board finds participation in the JPA desirable, participation in the WAC is even more important 
to ensure our interests are adequately represented.   

 
More information about IRWMP in general can be found on the state’s website at 
http://www.water.ca.gov/irwm/grants/ .  Specific information and the actual IRWMP plan adopted in 
2012 is contained on the following site: 
http://www.tcrcd.org/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=183&Itemid=114 . 
 
Also included in this agenda packet is an overview brochure on IRWMP and a description of the process 
required to join the Tuolumne Stanislaus IRWMP.   
 
Recommended Motion 
I move to approve participation of the Saddle Creek Community Services District in the Tuolumne-
Stanislaus Integrated Regional Water Management Plan, Watershed Advisory Committee, appointing 
General Manager Peter Kampa as representative and _____________________ as alternate, and 
continuing to evaluate the opportunities for participation on the IRWMP JPA Board of Directors.     
 

http://www.water.ca.gov/irwm/grants/
http://www.tcrcd.org/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=183&Itemid=114


Benefits of IRWMFrequently Asked Questions
How is IRWM different than what came before?
In general, IRWM involves looking at water management issues from a multitude of  
perspectives as diverse stakeholders engage one another.  That process can yield multi-
benefit projects that meet several entities’ goals and objectives in a more cost effective 
manner than each entity acting on its own.  Previously, water management entities tended 
to work with a narrow focus on their service area and primary function, sometimes com-
peting against similar efforts to resolve similar issues or advancing duplicative efforts. 

Why is IRWM important to me?  Why should I participate?
IRWM operates on the principle that each stakeholder holds a piece of  the water manage-
ment solution for their region and that the best solutions require better communication 
and understanding of  regional issues than has previously occurred. The more partners 
involved in an IRWM, the higher the potential for better water management solutions.

In addition to the IRWM grant, are there other sources to fund a project?
Yes, while recent State bond funding mea-
sures have provided a large amount of  
grant funding specifically for IRWM plans 
and implementation, there are other oppor-
tunities for projects.   Various state grant 
and loan programs, administered by DWR 
and other state agencies, can provide fund-
ing, including: FloodSAFE, urban streams, 
local groundwater assistance, stormwater 
quality, rivers and parkways, and state re-
volving fund loans.  Federal funding may 
also be available for some types of  projects.  
Local financing will make up the largest portion of  funding in many regions.  The 
IRWM plan should serve as a strategic investment plan for all sources of  funding.

What’s the current state of  IRWM planning?
IRWM planning regions now cover approximately 82% of  the area of  the State, an 
increase of  28% in five years.  Planning regions include approximately 98% of  the popu-
lation in California, an increase of  4% in five years. IRWM planning regions vary in size. 
Some cover an entire hydrologic region of  the State. In other hydrologic regions there 
are multiple IRWM planning regions. The largest IRWM planning region is approxi-
mately 12.5 M acres and the smallest about 170,000 acres.  The enclosed map presents 
the current IRWM planning regions in the State.

What is the relationship between local planning and IRWM planning?
Local planning is important and will continue as not all water resource management 
issues are regional in nature.  In fact, sound local planning helps generate regional 
issues and objectives that can benefit from integrated solutions. 

What do people involved in IRWM planning regions say?
Opinions about IRWM vary, but there is broad agreement on some of  the factors that 
lead to successful implementation of  the IRWM.  

   IRWM efforts are long term.  
   IRWM efforts yield unprecedented coordination and cooperation. 
   One of  the most valuable outcomes of  IRWM efforts are the relationships formed  

      between diverse stakeholders. 

How does someone get involved?
DWR’s web site contains contact information for current IRWM efforts (see resources 
section). If  an IRWM effort does not currently exist in your area, you can begin to iden-
tify other water management entities in your area to begin the conversation or you can 
contact one of  DWR’s regional contacts to begin to connect to others in your area. 

Contacts
For more information on Integrated 
Regional Water Management, please 
contact us at:
DWR_IRWM@water.ca.gov

Integrated Regional Water Management 
(IRWM) is a collaborative effort to man-
age all aspects of  water resources in a re-
gion.  IRWM differs from traditional ap-
proaches to water resource management 
by integrating all facets of  water supply, 
water quality, waste water treatment, and 
flood and storm water management.  
IRWM crosses jurisdictional, water-
shed, and political boundaries; involves 
multiple agencies, stakeholders, indi-
viduals, and groups; and attempts to ad-
dress the issues and differing perspec-

As indicated in the CWP Update 2009, 
IRWM is a key initiative to ensuring reli-
able water supplies in the future. IRWM 
helps communities and regions incorpo-
rate sustainable actions into their water 
management efforts.  
A main focus of  IRWM planning is di-
versification of  a region’s water portfolio 
so that multiple resource management 
strategies are employed in meeting fu-
ture water and water quality needs of  all 
sectors.  This diversification should help 
regions to better prepare to face an un-
certain future of  water availability and 
water use; while protecting and improv-
ing water quality and the environment. 

As a key initiative in the CWP, IRWM is 
a long term approach to water manage-
ment in California. As IRWM evolves, 
DWR seeks to encourage planning ef-
forts that are collaborative and use broad 
stakeholder participation to gain the in-
put that leads to diversity of  water man-
agement strategies. Such planning ef-
forts can live well into the future beyond 
current state funding incentives. 

tives of  all the entities involved through 
mutually beneficial solutions.
IRWM is an example of  integrated resource 
planning, which began in the late 1980s in 
the electric power industry as a compre-
hensive approach to resource management 
and planning. When applied to water man-
agement, integrated resource planning is a 
systems approach that explores the cause-
and-effect relationships between different 
aspects of  water resource management, 
with an understanding that changes in the 
management of  one aspect of  water re-

sources can affect others. Because water re-
sources are often not confined to the bound-
aries of  a single water management agency, 
a consensus-based, cross-jurisdictional, re-
gional approach provides an opportunity to 
formulate comprehensive solutions to water 
resource issues within a region. 
The methods used in the IRWM include a 
range of  water resource management strat-
egies, which relate to water supply, water 
quality, water use efficiency, operational 
flexibility, and stewardship of  land and nat-
ural resources. 

Although IRWM planning has roots 
in integrated resource planning, recent 
developments have caused a surge in 
IRWM activity in California. 
The Integrated Regional Water Man-
agement Act of  2002 (Senate Bill 1672, 
Costa) amended the California Water 
Code (CWC) to add §10530 to encour-
age local agencies to work cooperative-
ly to manage local and imported water 
supplies to improve the quality, quan-
tity, and reliability of  those supplies. 
While this act provided the authority 
for IRWM plans, it gave little guidance 
or incentive for IRWM planning or 
implementation.  

In November 2002, California voters 
passed Proposition 50, the Water Secu-
rity, Clean Drinking Water, Coastal and 
Beach Protection Act of  2002, which 
provided $500,000,000 (CWC §79560-
79565) to fund competitive grants for 
projects consistent with an adopted 
IRWM plan.  The grant program was 
run as a joint effort between the De-
partment of  Water Resources (DWR) 
and the State Water Resources Control 
Board to provide both planning and im-
plementation grants to IRWM efforts.  

What is IRWM?

Background
The incentive provided by this funding, 
as well as the direction provided in grant 
program guidelines, were major drivers 
for progress in IRWM over the last sev-
eral years.
In December 2005, DWR released the Cal-
ifornia Water Plan (CWP) Update, 2005, 
which names the IRWM as a key initiative 
to ensure reliable water supplies.
In November 2006, California voters 
passed Proposition 84, the Safe Drinking 
Water, Water Quality, and Supply, Flood 
Control, River and Coastal Protection 
Bond Act of  2006.  Proposition 84 pro-
vides $1,000,000,000 for IRWM planning 
and implementation.  At the same time, 
California voters also passed Proposition 
1E, the Disaster Preparedness and Flood 
Prevention Bond Act of  2006, which pro-
vides, among other actions, $300,000,000 
for storm water projects that reduce flood 
damage and are consistent with an IRWM 
plan. 
In October 2009, DWR released the CWP 
Pre-Final Draft, Update 2009, which em-
phasizes the need for integrated regional 
water management. As stated in the High-
lights volume, “IRWM provides a critical 
framework for actions to address the un-

certainties presented by climate change as 
well as other risks to California’s water 
future.” The first objective in the imple-
mentation chapter (Volume 1, Chapter 7) 
is to promote, improve, and expand inte-
grated regional water management. 

Inntetegrgrata eded R Rege ional Water Manageg mem nt
(I(IRWRWM)M) iiss aa cocolll aboro ative effort too maman-

tives off  allll ttthee eentnttititieies s ininvovolvlveded tthrhrououghgh
mum tutualallylyy bbeneenefefeficiiciaiiallll sossolulutititiononns.s.

sosoururceces s cacan n afafffefefectctctcttt o oooththththerererereers.s. BBBBececauaua seee watter re-
sosoururcecess araree ofoftetennn nononootttt cocococc nfnfnfnfn ininininnnedededeed tttooo ththee bobound-

What is IRWMM??



Integrated Regional Water Management
48 Accepted IRWM Regions

September 1, 2011

Inte rated Re ional Water Mana ementIntegrated Regional Water Management
48 Accepted IRWM Regions

September 1, 2011

Monterey

San Francisco

Resources
California Water Plan and Updates: http://www.waterplan.water.ca.gov/

IRWM Grant Program: http://www.water.ca.gov/irwm/

FloodSAFE: http://www.floodsafe.water.ca.gov/

Other DWR Grant programs: http://www.water.ca.gov/nav/nav.cfm?loc=t&id=103

State Water Board Financial Assistance: http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans

Legend

Notes:
1) Hatch and Dot symbols are shown where there is a boundary overlap
2) Numbers shown are for reference purposes only and correspond to internal DWR RAP submittal identifications.
3) Region boundaries shown are those submitted by each applicant as part of  the RAP submittal. 
     - RAP 2009 = ID Numbers 1 - 46
     - RAP 2011 = ID Numbers 47 - 49
    * Denotes Region is conditionally approved 
ID No. 25 (Sacramento Valley) is no longer participating in the IRWM Grant Program and is no longer shown.

In 2009, DWR went through a Region Acceptance Pro-
cess (RAP) to accept regions into the IRWM Grant 
Program.  Fourty six regions submitted applications, 
and after a thorough review and interview process, 
DWR approved 36 regions, and conditionally approved 
10 other regions. The map above shows those regions 
that have been approved or conditionally approved 
by DWR.  The DWR IRWM web site contains more 
specific information on the RAP. 

Region Acceptance Process

Document Design: Angham Aljabiry



Protocol for Joining the Tuolumne-Stanislaus Joint 

Powers Authority Board of Directors 

 

 
Purpose:  This protocol is designed to provide a basic roadmap for an interested public agency, other 
joint powers organization, or federally recognized tribe to follow in pursuing an interest in joining the 
TS-JPA.    
 

I. Qualification:  An interested party must represent an entity that qualifies to become a member 
of a CA Joint Powers Authority according to the standards listed in Joint Exercise of Powers Act 
(SB 1350, Senate Local Government Committee, 2000) and can be found in Government Code 
6500-6536 (http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/displaycode?section=gov&group=06001-
07000&file=6500-6536).  The interested party must represent a qualified entity within the T-S 
IRWM region and have a well-defined connection to the watersheds within the T-S region and 
demonstrate that it has common powers with the T-S JPA.   

 
II. Declaration of Intent:  Next, a qualified interested party must contact the T-S staff and request 

to be placed on the T-S JPA Board agenda to address the board regarding the qualifications and 
interests of the entity represented.  The board must pass a motion deeming the qualifications 
and intent sufficient for membership and directing staff to provide the necessary information to 
complete the process.   

 
III. Resolution Adopting the T-S Integrated Regional Water Management Plan:  If the entity is 

governed by a board, a resolution accepting the T-S IRWM must be submitted to the T-S 
Administrator.  If there is no board, a sample of an alternative form of acceptance will be 
provided by T-S staff. 

 
IV. Signing of the T-S IRWMA Agreement and Board Member Designation:  The entity must 

request from T-S staff a copy of the JPA agreement.  This agreement should be reviewed by the 
applying entity’s legal counsel.  A wet signature page must be submitted to T-S staff.  Staff will 
also supply the form required for board member designation.  This form must also be submitted 
to T-S staff. 

 
V. Financial Contribution:  The T-S IRWM process is funded through a local budget.  The cost of the 

local budget is split equally among the members of the JPA Board.   If the addition of a new 
member coincides with the start of a new fiscal year, all members’ contributions to the local 
budget will be adjusted accordingly.  If an entity desires to join the JPA during the course of a 
fiscal year, the local budget contribution will be assessed based on a pro-rata share of the 
current fiscal year, per member cost, determined by which quarter within the fiscal year the 
entity signs the JPA Agreement.  In the latter case, all members’ contributions will be readjusted 
at the beginning of the next fiscal year.  A pro-rata invoice will be submitted upon passing of the 
board resolution and will be payable within thirty (30) days of submittal.  Complete fiscal year 
invoicing will follow the regular member invoicing schedule. 
 

VI. Board Resolution:  Upon receipt of all of the required documentation, the T-S JPA Board will 
pass a resolution formally naming the new entity as a member of the T-S JPA Board.   

http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/displaycode?section=gov&group=06001-07000&file=6500-6536
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/displaycode?section=gov&group=06001-07000&file=6500-6536


Saddle Creek Community Services District 

Regular Meeting of August 19, 2014 

 
AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA 

 
8.  NEW BUSINESS 

b. Approval of a Resolution authorizing execution of an agreement with Bank of the West for 
participation in the California Special Districts Association credit card program 
 

Background 
This item will approve a Resolution to authorize entering into an agreement between Bank of the West 
and the Saddle Creek Community Services District (District) establishing accounts for District credit 
cards. Included for your information is a draft credit card agreement including the terms and conditions, 
a FAQ sheet, and program description.   
 
Credit cards are a purchasing mechanism which improves the efficiency and convenience of conducting 
District business.   For many years, the District has provided the General Manager, Site Manager and 
Board Secretary with a credit card.  An opportunity is available for the District to qualify for a credit 
card program with many more benefits that our previous bank credit card. 
 
Bank of the West has partnered with California Special Districts Association (CSDA) for a purchasing 
program which issues purchasing or credit cards to qualified member agencies.  The District is a 
member of CSDA and is eligible to make application to this program.  The program aggregates the 
purchases of all participating members and offers free annual membership and variable cash rebates 
based on the volume of purchasing of all of the participating members. 
 
A Resolution, adopted by the Governing Board, together with the application will be submitted to Bank 
of the West to establish the credit card accounts.  The District has a Standard Practice with specific 
procedures relating to the use of credit cards.  In addition, a more detailed credit card use policy is being 
considered for adoption by this Board. 
 
Recommended Motion 
I move to approve Resolution___, 2014, authorizing the District to enter into an agreement with Bank of 
the West to establish District credit card accounts; and authorize the Board President to execute any 
necessary agreements. 
    
 



2/7/14 

 

   
 

 
CSDA District Purchasing Card Program Frequently Asked Questions 

 
How does my district enroll in the program? 

 Step-by-step instructions and enrollment forms can be found on our website:  
 www.csda.net/card. 
 

Who do we call to get administrative support? 
For changes to your account or any other issues, call the Bank of the West administrator support 
number: (866) 683-9893.   

 
Does the District’s Board of Directors need to pass a resolution to participate? 

Generally a resolution will need to be passed; however, we highly recommend that you check the 
specific requirements for your District. 

 
How many cardholders can we have? Is there a fee per cardholder? 

Each District may have as many cardholders as you need. The consolidated annual spending of 
the CSDA District Purchasing Card participants has far surpassed the minimum average of 
$20,000 per month. Should the consolidated spending fall below the $20,000 minimum, an 
annual per card fee of $30 could apply for each participating District.  

 
 What is the interest rate if we carry a balance on the card? 

The card program is a payment tool and is not intended for carrying/maintaining a balance. If 
payment is not made in full each month a monthly late fee of $25 will apply as well as a finance 
charge of Prime +4.99%. We encourage participants to pay off their balance every month. 

 
Will our district have a minimum spend in order to earn a rebate? 

There is no minimum spend. All participating Districts and CSDA will begin earning rebates with 
the first dollar spent.  

 
Why is there a separate rebate grid for transactions of $5,000 or more? 

Certain large transactions receive different pricing from MasterCard onIy if the merchant has 
been designated as a large ticket merchant. In addition to the large dollar  amount of the 
transaction, there are other criteria that the transaction must meet. It is unlikely that many 
transactions would fall under this classification. 

 
     What is the typical credit limit? 

The minimum credit limit is $50,000. So far, the highest credit to be approved is $250K. A district 
will want a limit of 2-2.5 times their highest month’s spend. 
 
 
 
 

http://csda.net/index.php
http://www.csda.net/csdacard


2/7/14 

 

CSDA District Purchasing Card Program Frequently Asked Questions (continued) 

 
 

When will the annual rebate be paid? 
The rebate is calculated in January and paid in February based on the spend of the previous 
calendar year. 
 

How can we maximize our potential for rebates? 
Rebates may be maximized by increased spending; as your card program volume increases so 
does the rebate available. Spending may be increased by finding additional vendors and uses for 
the card. Making on-line purchases, A/P payments, travel charges, and paying utility bills and cell 
phone payments are typically good ways to increase card spending.       

 
Can Bank of the West provide special terms for our district if we have a large program? 
 Bank of the West can provide customization based on a district’s potential spend. 

 
One of our employees left and we need to cancel their card. Who do we contact? 

For changes to your account or for help with any other program issues, call Bank of the West 
administrator support at (866) 683-9893. 

 



CSDA  

District Purchasing Card 

 

 

http://csda.net/index.php


2 

Government Card Solutions – Benefits for CSDA Members 

• Control the program through individual cardholder 

limits and online transaction monitoring.  

• Fraud Protection* is included with the program at 

no extra cost.    

• Earn rewards through cash back rebates. 

CSDA and members using the CSDA District Purchasing Card Program* for vendor 

payments, purchasing, travel or fleet transactions gain the following benefits:  

* Certain terms and conditions apply 



3 

Typical Government Card Uses 

● Cellular Phones/Pagers 

● Telecommunications 

● Utilities 

● Insurance Services 

● Fleet Maintenance/Fuel 

● Postage  

● Office Supplies 

● Furniture/Office Equipment 

● Food Services/Vending 

Machines 

● Tools/Hardware  

● Printing/Copying/Business Forms 

● Courier Services/Freight 

● Industrial Supplies 

 

● Printing/Copying/Business Forms 

● Temporary Services 

● Building Services/Janitorial 

● Equipment Leasing  

● Membership Dues/Subscriptions 

● Landscape Contracts 

● Security Services 

● Computer Hardware/Software 

● Travel Expenses 

● Conferences/Workshops/Webinars  

● Uniforms 

● First Aid Supplies 

● Legal/Consulting Services 

 



4 

CSDA District Purchasing Card Program Features & Controls 

 
● The CSDA District Purchasing Card Program is offered to all CSDA District 

members (subject to credit approval).  

● The program is designed for general purchasing expenses, travel expenses 

and to potentially replace the use of „personal’ cards. 

● Authorization Control Features: 

• A program credit limit is determined by the bank based on the  the 

participating District‟s financial statements. 

• Credit is underwritten on a District by District basis 

• Any credit losses are paid by the District incurring the loss 

• Individual cardholder credit limits are determined by each CSDA District 

● Additional Control Features: 

• Fraud protection – District is not responsible for fraud losses as long as the 

transactions are communicated immediately to the bank 

 

 

 

http://rds.yahoo.com/_ylt=A0S0202kxFxKogoB_p.JzbkF;_ylu=X3oDMTByZHM0MmZ2BHBvcwMxMQRzZWMDc3IEdnRpZANJMTA5XzEzMA--/SIG=1gtamhj8j/EXP=1247680036/**http%3A//images.search.yahoo.com/images/view%3Fback=http%253A%252F%252Fimages.search.yahoo.com%252Fsearch%252Fimages%253F_adv_prop%253Dimage%2526va%253Dlock%2526fr%253Dyfp-t-501%26w=451%26h=500%26imgurl=static.flickr.com%252F3044%252F3111680917_15582bff00.jpg%26rurl=http%253A%252F%252Fwww.flickr.com%252Fphotos%252Faniko_attila%252F3111680917%252F%26size=229k%26name=Street%2Bletterbox...%26p=lock%26oid=d416a9b6a08fab4c%26fr2=%26fusr=ribizlifozel...%26no=11%26tt=3916446%26sigr=11lf4lboh%26sigi=11gd83sq6%26sigb=12h5deb5s


5 

CSDA District Purchasing Card Program Features & Controls 
(continued) 

● Additional Control Features: 

• Dispute Transactions – District has up to 60 days to dispute a transaction 

• Up to $100,000 Protection against Employee Misuse* – Protects the District in the event of    

cardholder abuse 

 

• Free Insurance and Assistance Programs: 
 $100,000 travel accident insurance 

 Auto Car Rental Collision Damage Waiver  

 Insurance 

 Emergency Card Replacement 

   

• Travel Assistance Services: 
 Emergency Message Assistance 

 Medical Referral Assistance  

 Roadside Assistance 

 Legal Referral Assistance 

 Emergency Ticket Replacement 

 Emergency Transportation Assistance 

 Lost Luggage Locator Assistance 

 

.  

 

 
*Specific terms & conditions apply 



6 

CSDA District Purchasing Card Program Features & Controls 
(continued) 

● Billing & Payment Terms 

• Billing date – 28th of each month 

• Payment is due 25 days after the billing date 

• Payment may be made by direct debit or payment on-line 

 

● Billing Statements 

• Are available on-line the day after the statement billing date 

• Are also available in paper form and will be mailed to your office 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



7 

Attractive Financial Rebate Offer 

* Subject to credit approval        

ANNUAL AGGREGATED VOLUME   

Minimum Maximum REBATE RATE* 

0 999,999 0.50% 

1,000,000 4,999,999  0.70% 

5,000,000  7,499,999  0.80% 

7,500,000  14,999,999  0.90% 

15,000,000 19,999,999 1.00% 

20,000,000 49,999,999 1.05% 

50,000,000 79,999,999 1.15% 

80,000,000 Over 1.25% 

● Annual Volume is an aggregate of the total spend of CSDA and all participating districts. 

● No minimum spend is required. Participant districts begin earning rebates on dollar one. 

 Rebate Schedule: 

If reduced interchange is received due to “large ticket transaction rates” as defined by MasterCard, 

Bank reserves the right to apply the Large Dollar Rebate table shown below: 

 

       Rebate Chart for transactions meeting “Large Ticket” criteria 

AVERAGE TICKET   

Minimum Maximum REBATE RATE* 

5,000 9,999 0.35% 

10,000 19,999  0.20% 

20,000 29,999  0.15% 

30,000 Over  0.10% 



8 

Rebate Payout Example 

 

 

 

•   By aggregating  the spend of CSDA and its members, the District Purchasing Card Program                  

allows each participating agency to earn greater rebates.  

 

•   The greater the spend of each participating agency, the greater rebate potential for all. 

 

•   Rebates will be awarded annually based on each agency‟s spending volume. 

Entity Volume Rebate Rate Annual Rebate Payout 

CSDA 400,000 0.80% 3,200 

Agency A 2,000,000 0.80% 16,000 

Agency B 400,000 0.80% 3,200 

Agency C 1,500,000 0.80% 12,000 

Agency D 600,000 0.80% 4,800 

Agency E 800,000 0.80% 6,400 

          Total 5,700,000   42,400 



9 

CSDA District Purchasing Card Program Technology 

● On-Line Information Reporting – CentreSuite 

• Included with the program at no cost 

• 24/7  ability to view transactions, reports and monthly statement on-line 

• Order new cards on-line 

• Make changes to cardholder information on-line 

• The following reports are available on-line and may be run on an ad-hoc basis: 

• Allocation Analysis Report 

• Cardholder Dispute Form 

• Cardholder Profile Report 

• Merchant Report 

• Multiple Transaction Exception Report 

• Program Change Request Audit Report 

• Statement of Account Report 

• Transaction Report 

• User Profile Report 

 

 

 

 

http://rds.yahoo.com/_ylt=A2KJkIUAnv9N_1MAfkCjzbkF/SIG=12tl3ooj3/EXP=1308626560/**http%3a//www.technology-updates.com/wp-content/uploads/2010/08/computer.jpg


10 

CentreSuite –  

View Statements On-Line & Make Program Changes 



11 

CentreSuite - Make Payments On-Line 



12 

Why Bank of the West 

● State of Art Technology  

• View transactions on-line 

• On-line bill payment 

• View statements on-line 

• Perform on-line account maintenance 

 

● Experience 

• Dedicated program support in California 

• 1-800 Cardholder support  

 

● Attractive Financial Offering 

• Annual cash back rebates 

• Rebate spending aggregated for CSDA 

  to increase payouts to members 



13 

CSDA District Purchasing Card Program Application Process 

● Visit www.csda.net/card 

● Step-by-step instructions and forms for enrollment in the CSDA District 

Purchasing Card Program are available on the CSDA website.  

● Implementation  

• The bank will evaluate the credit of each District applying for a card program. 

• Upon credit approval, the timeframe to receive cards is 4-6 weeks.   

• Standard CSDA logo cards will be provided to each District. 

• Cards can be mailed to your office or directly to your cardholders. 

● Customer Service 

• Bank of the West will provide account servicing and education regarding best practices.  

• Support for District program administrators at 866-683-9893 or contact CSDA Member 

Services Director Cathrine Lemaire at 877-924-2732 . 

 

 

 





































































RESOLUTION ___, 2014 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SADDLE CREEK 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT AUTHORIZING AGREEMENT WITH BANK  OF 
THE WEST TO PARTICIPATE IN THE CSDA DISTRICT PURCHASING CARD PROGRAM 

WHEREAS,  Credit  cards  and  purchasing  cards  are  mechanisms  for  purchasing  goods  
and services for the convenience of the Saddle Creek Community Services District 
(District); and 

WHEREAS, the California Special Districts Association (CSDA) has negotiated with Bank 
of the West to provide a Purchasing Card Program for vendor payments, purchasing, 
travel or fleet transact ions, and 

WHEREAS,  the  CSDA  District Purchasing  Card  Program  (Program)  is available  to  
members  of the CSDA and the District is a member of the CSDA; and 

WHEREAS,   the  Program  requires  an  application  for  credit  approval,  a  resolution  by  
the District Governing Board, and District policy and procedures regarding the use of the 
credit cards; and 

WHEREAS, the District has a Standard Practice of procedures for using credit cards as 
required by the Program, 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Governing Board of the Saddle Creek 
Community Services District directs the following actions: 
 
a. Authorize participation with Bank of the West in the CSDA District Purchasing Card 

program 
b. Authorize the application to the Program for credit cards or purchasing cards; 
c. Authorize the Board President to execute any necessary agreements 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,  that   this  Resolution  shall   take   effect   immediately   
upon adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Saddle Creek Community Services 
District on August 19, 2014 by the following vote: 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSTAIN: 

 ABSENT:      ATTEST: 

______________________________                               _______________________________ 
Kent Lazarus, President     Phyllis Richards, Board Secretary 

Board of Directors 



Saddle Creek Community Services District 

Regular Meeting of August 19, 2014 

 
AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA 

 
8.  NEW BUSINESS 

c. Approval of a Resolution establishing the Board policy on Credit Card Use  
 
Background 
The District currently uses credit cards for intermittent purchases and for travel expenses.  The use of 
credit cards are an efficient means of making and documenting purchases, and to streamline payment of 
bills.  So long as credit cards are paid off each month, we typically do not incur finance charges for their 
use.   
 
The District currently does not have specific policy guidance in place regarding the use of District credit 
cards.  The District does currently have a Board approved purchasing policy and credit card use 
procedures that have been established by management.  The use of credit cards itself is not considered a 
risk from an audit perspective, so long as specific procedures are in place and enforced governing their 
use in accordance with laws and the policy of the District.     
 
The purpose of this proposed policy is to clarify the Boards expectations with regard to use of District 
credit cards. This policy prescribes specific procedures for credit card use, issuance and replacement if 
lost, documentation of purchases, accounting and administrative responsibilities.   
 
Recommended Motion 
I move to approve Resolution ___, 2014, establishing the Board policy on Credit Card Use.      
 



RESOLUTION ___, 2014 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SADDLE CREEK 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT ESTABLISHING A POLICY ON CREDIT CARD USE 

 
 
WHEREAS, clearly written policies and procedures adopted by this Board are necessary 
for the efficient and effective management of the affairs of the District; and 

WHEREAS, attached hereto is the policy of this Board relating to the use of District 
Credit Cards. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Saddle Creek 
Community Services District does hereby adopt and approve this policy on Credit Card Use.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that   this policy shall   take   effect   immediately   upon 
adoption of this Resolution. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Saddle Creek Community Services 
District on August 19, 2014 by the following vote: 

 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSTAIN: 

 ABSENT:      ATTEST: 

______________________________                               _______________________________ 
Kent Lazarus, President     Phyllis Richards, Board Secretary 

Board of Directors 



 
POLICY TITLE:  Credit Card Use 
POLICY NUMBER: 3145 
ADOPTED:   
AMENDED: 
 
 
3145. Purpose 
The purpose of this policy is to establish the policies and procedures for the issuance and 
usage of District Credit Cards. 
 

3145.1. Policy/Procedure 
 

3145.1.1. Purpose of District Credit Cards 
District credit cards will be issued for the sole purpose of conducting the official 
business of the District.  Credit cards will be provided to select employees for the 
purpose of making purchases, securing reservations, paying travel expenses, placing 
orders, and doing District business in the most efficient manner. The District credit 
card is intended to replace the use of petty cash and open purchase orders.   
 
3145.1.2. Issuance of District Credit Cards  
When a District credit card is issued, the General Manager will ask the employee to 
sign a form acknowledging his/her understanding of the policies and procedures for 
the use of the District credit card and acknowledging the receipt of the credit card. 
 
3145.1.3. Restricted Use of the Credit Card 
The following restrictions are placed on all District credit cards: 
 

3145.1.3.1. Credit cards are issued to District employees for the sole 
purpose of conducting official business of the District.  Improper use of a 
District credit card will be treated as misuse of public funds and will subject the 
Cardholder to disciplinary action. 
3145.1.3.2. The District credit card is for the cardholder's use only. 
3145.1.3.3. Cardholders must ensure that budgeted funds are available 
prior to making purchases.  The General Manager or Bookkeeper can assist the 
cardholder with any needed budget information. 
3145.1.3.4. The District credit card shall not be used for any of the 
following: 

• Cash advances, wire transfers, money orders, etc. 
• Betting, casino gaming, or related activities. 

 SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
Policy and Procedure Manual  

Page 1 
 



• Political or religious organizations. 
• Personal court costs, fines, bail or bonds. 
• Purchases of items for which the District has cash discount 

agreements, unless for an emergency situation. 
• Any personal items and personal services. 

 
3145.2. Safekeeping of the Credit Card 
The Cardholder is responsible for the security of the District credit card. If a District 
credit card is used infrequently, such as for staff travel, the card will be safely stored and 
under the control of the General Manager while it is not in use, and will be signed in and 
out as needed. 
 
3145.3. Credit Card Purchase Procedures 
Cardholders will complete the following steps with each purchase: 

3145.3.1. For all orders, including mail and phone, require the vendor to provide 
a sales draft with pertinent information such as the vendor name, date, items 
purchased, and total sales. Email or fax confirmation shall be provided to the 
Bookkeeper upon receipt. 

3145.3.2. Retain the sales draft with accompanying receipt/invoice. 
3145.3.3. Submit any late received order confirmation receipts to the 

Bookkeeper on a monthly basis in conjunction with the credit card billing cycle. 
 

3145.4. Payment of Credit Card Account 
The District's Bookkeeper shall complete the following steps upon receipt of the credit 
card statement: 

3145.4.1. Balance all sales drafts to the statement, which will show all 
transactions made during the billing cycle.  All items must be accounted for on 
the statement with a supporting sales draft, receipt/invoice, log entry, or order 
form, and district employee signature verifying receipt of all items purchased 
and/or billed.  

3145.4.2. Indicate the account number to be charged for each item by writing it 
on the statement, or statement recap. 

3145.4.3. As quickly as possible following receipt of the monthly statement, the 
statement will be verified, reconciled and prepared for payment.  The payment 
will be mailed in a timely manner to avoid finance charges. The General 
Manager or his/her designee is authorized to arrange for automatic payment of 
the monthly credit card billing if all payment conditions above are met.    

 
3145.5. Lost or Stolen Credit Card 
Should a cardholder lose or have his/her District credit card stolen, it is his/her 
responsibility to contact the bank immediately, and notify the General Manager or 
Bookkeeper as well.  The Bookkeeper will record the following: cardholder's complete 
name; District credit card number; date reported to police, if stolen; date the bank was 
notified, and; any purchase(s) made on the day the card was lost or stolen.  A new 
District credit card will be provided to the cardholder as soon as possible from the time 
the loss or theft is reported to the bank 

 

Page 2 
 



3145.6. Return of the Credit Card 
The General Manager is responsible for retrieving the credit card when an employee 
separates from the District.  Use of the credit card for any purpose after its surrender is 
prohibited. 
 
3145.7. Responsibility Assignments 
 

Cardholders: 

Purchase supplies and services on behalf 
of the District in accordance with these 
guidelines 

Notify both the bank and the Bookkeeper 
if the card is lost or stolen 

Return card to the General Manager if it 
is not to be used for an extended period 

Provide order confirmation and 
verification of order receipt as quickly 
as possible 

Bookkeeper: 

Review of the monthly credit card charge 
summary provided by the bank 

Ensure each transaction is fully 
documented, and ensure that the correct 
budget account is charged for each 
purchase 

Prompt payment of the monthly credit 
card statement 

General Manager 

Ensure that the credit card is surrendered 
upon separation from the District 

Review credit card program 
administration for compliance with this 
policy 

 
 
 

Page 3 
 



Exhibit A 
Saddle Creek Community Services District 

Acknowledgment of Receipt of Credit Card and 
Cardholder Agreement 

 
1. I acknowledge that I have received a Credit Card issued through Saddle Creek Community 

Services District to be used for purposes of conducting District business. I also 
acknowledge that I have received the District's Credit Card Policy providing guidelines for 
the use of this card. I agree to read the policy and abide by its procedures. 

 
2. I understand that this card is issued as a convenience to the District and may be cancelled 

by the District at any time for any reason. I will not permit another person to use the Credit 
Card issued to me. I further understand that misuse of the card may result in discipline, up 
to and including termination and legal action. 

 
3. I will be responsible for the security of the card. If lost or stolen, I will immediately notify 

the District's General Manager and the issuing bank. 
 

I HAVE READ, UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO THE CONDITIONS ABOVE: 
 
  

Name of Cardholder 
 
  

Signature 
 
  

Date 
CARD RECEIPT: 

 
Card Account Number:    

Date Issued to Cardholder:    

 
CARD RETURN: 

 
I hereby surrender the credit card issued to me by the Saddle Creek Community Services 
District. I declare that all outstanding charges on the credit card are for official District 
business and will be paid through established procedures. 

 
Card Holder Name:        

Signature/Date Returned:  

 
  



Saddle Creek Community Services District 

Regular Meeting of August 19, 2014 

 
AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA 

 
8.  NEW BUSINESS 

d. Approval of a Resolution establishing the Board policy on Travel Expense Limitations 
 
Background 
State law is very specific with regard to approval, public reporting and reimbursement of Directors for 
travel expenses incurred while on District business.  In addition, several past financial audits have 
documented potential deficiencies in our internal financial controls related to travel expenses.   
 
This proposed policy is developed to strengthen our internal controls and at the same time provide an 
efficient and comprehensive guidance document for District management.        
 
Recommendation 
I move to approve Resolution___, 2014 establishing the Board policy on Travel Expense Limitations.       
 



RESOLUTION ___, 2014 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SADDLE CREEK 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT ESTABLISHING A POLICY TRAVEL EXPENSE 

LIMITATIONS 

 
 
WHEREAS, clearly written policies and procedures adopted by this Board are necessary 
for the efficient and effective management of the affairs of the District; and 

WHEREAS, attached hereto and incorporated herein is the policy of this Board relating 
to Travel Expense Limitations. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Saddle Creek 
Community Services District does hereby adopt and approve the attached policy on Travel 
Expense Limitations  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that   this policy shall   take   effect   immediately   upon 
adoption of this Resolution. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Saddle Creek Community Services 
District on August 19, 2014 by the following vote: 

 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSTAIN: 

 ABSENT:      ATTEST: 

______________________________                               _______________________________ 
Kent Lazarus, President     Phyllis Richards, Board Secretary 

Board of Directors 



 
POLICY TITLE: Travel Expense Limitation  
POLICY NUMBER: 3030 
ADOPTED:    
AMENDED: 

 
 

3030.1. PURPOSE: To provide policy and procedures for the reimbursement of travel expenditures 
incurred by Directors, employees and contract employees while on District authorized 
business trips or at approved meetings. 

3030.2. TRAVEL ELIGIBILITY: 

3030.2.1. General. All travel shall be planned in the most economical way. 

3030.2.2. Travel Approval: 

3030.2.2.1. Budgeted. The budget shall contain a line item for Director, General 
Manager and Staff training and conferences. The travel expense to attend 
conventions, conferences, training seminars and similar meetings shall be kept to 
an absolute minimum and shall be limited to funds budgeted for such purpose. No 
more than two directors shall attend any single event unless separately approved 
by the Board of Directors. It is the intent of this Board to rotate attendance at such 
events among the Directors to the extent requested and feasible, with priority given 
to Board members serving in an official capacity on committees or task forces of 
the associations to which the District belongs. All Board member travel shall be 
approved by the Board of Directors on the Consent section of a meeting agenda. 
The Board President may give approval if time does not permit full Board approval 

3030.2.2.2. Unbudgeted. When the amount budgeted for travel expenses is 
exceeded for the budget year, or the event proposed to be attended was not 
contemplated at budget preparation time, then any associated travel expense 
reimbursement requires prior approval of the Board of Directors. 

3030.2.3. Expenses Eligible for Reimbursement: 

3030.2.3.1. Conference Limitation and Reporting Requirement  

3030.2.3.1.1. Subject to the above budget limitations, Board members will be 
reimbursed expenses for up to two multi-day conferences/seminars per 
calendar year including the annual California Special District Association 
(CSDA) conference. 

3030.2.3.1.2. Directors are required by California Government Code Section 
53232.3 to provide a brief oral or written report to the Board at the first meeting 
following the incurrence of a reimbursed expense. 

3030.2.3.1.3. Staff travel shall be limited to that necessary for achieving the 
certifications and education necessary to competently perform the job 
requirements, as recommended by the Site Manager or his/her designee and 
approved by the General Manager. 

SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
Policy and Procedure Manual  

 
SCCSD Policy 3030, Travel Expense Limitation                                                                                         Page 1 of 4  



3030.2.3.2. Transportation 

3030.2.3.2.1. Mileage Expense.    If  a  District vehicle  is not available, use of  a 
private  vehicle  must  be  authorized  by the  General  Manager  or President 
of the Board. Mileage reimbursement shall follow the rate per mile established 
by the IRS. 

3030.2.3.2.2. Parking and Bridge Toll Expense.   When necessary, parking or 
bridge tolls shall be reimbursed at actual cost. Receipts are required. 

3030.2.3.2.3. Public Transportation.   Use of public transportation when required 
shall be coach or economy class only. Receipts are required. 

3030.2.3.2.4. Meals 

3030.2.3.2.4.1. While attending approved District functions, the actual 
cost of meals shall be reimbursed up to a maximum per day in 
accordance with Attachment A. Receipts are required. 

3030.2.3.2.4.2. The actual cost of meals incurred during business 
luncheons, meetings, seminars or while on promotional tours that 
exceed the maximum daily allowance, as specified in Attachment A, 
must be approved by the Board of Directors. 

EXCEPTION - When attending a conference, seminar or meeting 
held in an area where meal expenses are customarily more than the 
maximum daily allowance. 

3030.2.3.2.5. Lodging. The actual cost of single room occupancy shall be 
reimbursed up to a maximum per day in accordance with attachment A. 
Receipts are required. 

EXCEPTION In some major cities, the limitation amount may be too 
low. Upon approval by the General Manager or Board President 
before departure, the limitation may be increased to a level of 
"reasonable and customary" for such a city. 
EXCEPTION When attending a conference or seminar held in a 
particular hotel where rates are more than the maximum and 
convenient alternative lodging under the maximum is not available or 
appropriate. 

3030.2.3.2.6. Conference Registration. The actual cost of registration, 
including meals if applicable, shall be reimbursed. Receipts are required. 

3030.2.3.2.7. Other Expenses. Other expenses incurred as a direct result of 
the trip may be eligible for reimbursement at actual cost. Receipts are 
required. 

3030.3. INELIGIBLE  EXPENSES: 

3030.3.1. Personal Expenses. The cost of personal items, including entertainment (i.e. in 
room movies) and alcohol, is ineligible. 

3030.3.2. Other Family Members and Non District Employees. The cost of providing 
transportation, meals, lodging, etc., for a spouse, other family member(s) or non-
District employee while traveling on official District business is ineligible. 

EXCEPTION The General Manager may authorize the purchase of 
an occasional business related meal for non-District employees, 
within the limits of Exhibit A, when the employee seeking 

 
SCCSD Policy 3030, Travel Expense Limitation                                                                                         Page 2 of 4  



reimbursement is conducting a working meal with others and the 
intent of the meal purchase is to produce a positive outcome for the 
District. 

3030.3.3. Unreasonable Expenditures. The amount by which other eligible expenditures 
exceed limits herein established shall be deemed unreasonable and ineligible. It is the 
responsibility of every employee or Director to use good judgment when incurring 
expenditures while traveling on District business. 

3030.4. ADVANCE REGISTRATION AND CASH ADVANCES: 

3030.4.1. Advance Registration. For most seminars, conferences, etc., it is desirable to 
register in advance. Staff shall be responsible for making advance registrations upon 
receipt of an approved travel request. 

3030.4.2. Cash Advance. A cash advance in an amount per day in accordance with 
Attachment A may be made at the request of the employee or Director when traveling 
overnight. A request for a cash advance must be made to the General Manager at least 
seven (7) working days prior to the day of departure. Cash advances will be deducted 
from the total reimbursement claim by the District employee or Director and such 
reimbursement claim must be submitted within five (5) working days of the employees 
or Directors return. 

3030.5. REIMBURSEMENT  PROCEDURE: 

3030.5.1. Claim Form. A "Travel Reimbursement Claim" form must be completed and 
submitted, to the Bookeeper within fifteen (15) days of return from trip. 

3030.5.2. Approval. Travel expense reimbursement claims shall be submitted to the 
Board of Directors for approval monthly with the monthly bills. 

3030.5.3. Record Keeping. The Secretary of the Board shall maintain as a public record 
a separate file, by year, containing the approved travel expense claims for all Board 
members and the General Manager. 

  

 
SCCSD Policy 3030, Travel Expense Limitation                                                                                         Page 3 of 4  



ATTACHMENT A 
 

TRAVEL EXPENSE, ELIGIBILITY LIMITS 
 
 
 
 

Mileage: Allowance determined by Internal Revenue Service, per mile 
 
 
Meals: $60.00 maximum per day, 15% gratuity allowed in addition 
 
Lodging: $175.00 major city or published conference rate. Lodging for a one day 

conference/meeting shall be limited to one (1) night unless there are 
extenuating circumstances. 

 
Cash Advance: As required. 
 
Mileage Guidelines: Person to be reimbursed shall document the actual miles driven to and from 

the event and reimbursement shall be provided for the lesser of: 
a) As determined by internet map search, the round trip mileage from the 

District office to the event and back to the District office, or 
b) The mileage documented by the person to be reimbursed 

 

 

 
SCCSD Policy 3030, Travel Expense Limitation                                                                                         Page 4 of 4  



Saddle Creek Community Services District 

Regular Meeting of August 19, 2014 

 
AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA 

 
8.  NEW BUSINESS 

e. Approval of a Resolution establishing the Board Policy on Board Member Compensation 
 
 
Background 
As directed during the July 15, 2014 Board meeting, attached is draft policy related to Board member 
compensation.  The Board had previously authorized compensation to Board members in the amount of 
$100 per meeting, and this proposed policy does not increase that amount; which is limited by state law.   
 
The policy is intended to define the meetings and events for which a Board member can expect 
compensation, up to the maximum of $600 per month as detailed in state law.  This policy proposes 
payment of the $100 for all Brown Act meetings (regular and special meetings); events, meetings of 
other public agencies or nonprofits and District related training, attendance at which has been 
preapproved by the Board.  For all events other than Brown Act meetings, Board members are required 
to submit a brief written report. 
 
The language in this policy defining compensable meetings is taken right out of the Government Code, 
and its provisions are mandatory.  However, the Board can establish a rate of pay per day’s service of 
less than the $100.  Regular meetings can be compensated differently than special meetings and different 
than other compensable events.  In theory, the rate of compensation is intended to cover the cost, or 
value of the Director’s time in preparing for and attending the meeting or event.  
 
The proposed policy contains the proposed continued payment of the $100 per meeting.  The Board has 
the option to modify the amount at this meeting.  The policy also allows for a Directors to voluntarily 
waive compensation due to him/herself.    
 
Recommended Motion 
I move to approve Resolution ____, 2014, establishing the Board policy on Board Member 
Compensation.      
 



 
POLICY TITLE:  Board Member Compensation 
POLICY NUMBER: 4130 
ADOPTED:  August 19, 2014 
AMENDED: 
 
4130.1  Members of the Board of Directors shall receive compensation in an amount of 
one hundred dollars ($100) for each day of service. A member of the board of directors shall 
not receive compensation for more than six days of service in a month. 
 
 4130.1.1 A member of the board of directors may individually waive any or all 
of the payments permitted by this policy. 
 
4103.2  A “day of service” means any of the following: 

1. A meeting conducted pursuant to the Ralph M. Brown Act; or 

2. Attendance at other meetings and events specified below provided that the board of 
directors has previously approved the member’s representation at a board of directors’ 
meeting and that the member delivers a written report to the board of directors 
regarding the member’s representation at the next board of directors’ meeting 
following the meeting, training or public event detailed below: 

a. Representation of the district at a public event, 

b. Representation of the district at a public meeting or a public hearing conducted 
by another public agency 

c. Representation of the district at a meeting of a public benefit nonprofit 
corporation on whose board the district has membership 

d. Participation in a training program on a topic that is directly related to the 
district 

 . 
 

 SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
Policy and Procedure Manual  

 
  



RESOLUTION ___, 2014 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SADDLE CREEK 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT ESTABLISHING A POLICY ON BOARD MEMBER 

COMPENSATION 

 
 
WHEREAS, clearly written policies and procedures adopted by this Board are necessary 
for the efficient and effective management of the affairs of the District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the California Government Code Section 61047 authorizes the payment to 
Directors of up to $100 per day for attendance at meetings and other approved District 
functions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has previously authorized payments to Directors in the 
amount of $100 per meeting and herein intends to clarify and codify the eligibility 
requirements for receipt of the compensation in accordance with state law; and  

WHEREAS, attached hereto and included in this action is the policy of this Board 
relating to Board Member Compensation. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Saddle Creek 
Community Services District does hereby adopt and approve this policy on Board Member 
Compensation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that   this policy shall   take   effect   immediately   upon 
adoption of this Resolution. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Saddle Creek Community Services 
District on August 19, 2014 by the following vote: 

 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSTAIN: 

 ABSENT:      ATTEST: 

______________________________                               _______________________________ 
Kent Lazarus, President     Phyllis Richards, Board Secretary 

Board of Directors 



Saddle Creek Community Services District 

Regular Meeting of August 19, 2014 

 
AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA 

 
8.  NEW BUSINESS 

f. Discussion/Action regarding amendment to the 2014 budget to reflect a reduction in personnel 
expenses and a commensurate increase in contracted services expenses 

 
Background 
The 2014 budget was adopted with the assumption that prior manager Charlie Martin would continue 
through the year to be paid as an employee of the District.  To replace Mr. Martin, a contract was 
entered into between the District and Peter J. Kampa of Kampa Community Solutions, LLC.  Mr. 
Kampa is paid as a contractor, and therefore all of the expense associated with his management services 
are proposed to be accounted for in a Management Fees line item, as shown in the attached Budget 
Revised July 15, 2014.    
 
The Management Fee expense is proposed at $28,500 which covers from July 15, 2014 through 
December 31, 2014.  The Personnel Expenses, Employee Wages line item in the approved 2014 budget 
was $310,000.  This amount is reduced in the Revised 2014 Budget proposed to $281,500, a $28,500 
reduction. The bottom line of the budget does not change, with budgeted personnel expenses simply 
being reclassified as Management Fees.    
 
Recommended Motion 
I move to approve the amended 2014 Budget dated July 15, 2014 as presented.   
 



FY 2014 Approved Budget (Operational Expenses, Personnel & Capitol Outlay) $580,780

FY 2014 Projected General Fund Balance (Unassigned Funds):

Stabilization Funds (Internal Info Only) $48,398

Other Unassigned Funds (Internal Info Only) $235,910

Total Unassigned Funds $284,308

FY 2013 Actual Beginning

Balance $280,286

FY 2013 Actual

Assessment Revenue $550,236 $544,498

FY 2014 Actual Beginning

Balance (3) $304,035

FY 2014 Projected

Assessment Revenues $561,053 $865,088

(Approved) Actual Approved

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES 2013 FY 2013 FY 2014

Audit Expenses $7,500 $7,500 $7,500

Accounting & Bookkeeping $5,000 $6,152 $6,000

Misc. Fees (Notary/Bonds/etc.) $700 $936 $1,000

Legal Expenses $1,500 $406 $1,500

Management Fees $0 $0 $28,500

Insurance (Property Loss/Liability) $7,000 $6,065 $8,000

Miscellaneous/Contingency $5,000 $4,746 $5,000

Professional Development (Travel/Training) $5,000 $4,816 $5,000

Dues, Certificates & Subscriptions $4,000 $3,476 $4,000

Uniform Expenses $1,600 $1,555 $1,600

Electric Power/Water/Sewer $5,000 $4,826 $5,000

Telephone Service $5,000 $4,412 $5,000

Internet Service $1,200 $1,111 $1,200

Office Supplies/Postage $4,500 $4,395 $4,500

Office Equipment Repair/Replacement $2,300 $2,277 $2,300

Gate Maintenance & Opener Purchase $16,500 $16,922 $4,000

Streets, Sidewalks & Lighting Maintenance $8,300 $7,416 $13,500

Landscape Supplies & Repairs $21,000 $20,566 $21,000

Landscape Equipment Repair/Replacement $16,583 $16,270 $16,500

Lease/Purchase Tractor $3,909 $3,127 $0

Landscape Equipment Gas & Oil $7,000 $6,933 $7,000

Mosquito Control Products $11,000 $10,970 $13,500

Mosquito Abatement Monitoring & Testing $2,800 $1,697 $3,000

Mosquito Abatement Vehicle Gas & Oil $13,000 $11,423 $13,000

Mosquito Abatement Vehicle Maintenance $5,000 $5,059 $5,000

County Fees/LAFCO (1) $0 $6,006 $6,500

Reimbursable Maint/Repair Expense (2) $0 $10,534 $0

Total Operational Expenses $160,392 $169,596 $189,100

SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

APPROVED FY 2014 BUDGET-EXHIBIT "A" Page 1 of 2

FY 2013 Actual Expenditures

FY 2014 Projected Total

Funds Available

REVISED 07/15/2014

(1) County Fees/LAFCO deducted directly from Assessments.
(2) Reimbursements paid or due to be paid by Castle & Cooke.
(3) Beginning balance includes Misc. Income (Reimbursements/Fees & Interest).



Saddle Creek CSD

FY 2014 Approved Budget/Exhibit "A" Page 2 of 2

(Approved) Actual Approved

Personnel Expenses 2013 FY 2013 FY 2014

Workers' Compensation Insurance (13) $15,500 $10,381 $16,000

Health Insurance (6) $57,000 $44,897 $58,780

Payroll Taxes (13) $27,000 $25,968 $28,000

Processing Fees (13) $1,400 $1,366 $1,400

Directors' Stipend (5) $6,000 $5,600 $6,000

Employee Wages (8) $309,500 $273,455 $281,500

Total Personnel Expenses: $416,400 $361,667 $391,680

Capital Outlay (Approved) Actual Approved

2013 FY 2013 FY 2014

2" SDS Max Rotary Hammer with attachments $1,350 $1,349 $0

Workman MDX Cart $12,500 $11,886 $0

Total Capital Outlay $13,850 $13,235 $0

* Annual employee merit increases (step raises) are reflected.
* Cost of living increases are reflected.
* Includes IRA contribution for Maintenance Manager ($3500) & Maintenance Supervisor ($3000) - adjusted FY 2014.
* Directors, General Manager & CSD Clerk/Treasurer do not receive Health Insurance Benefits.



Employee Classification FY 2014 Salary Schedule

(5) Directors (Elected) $100 per Board Meeting Attended

(1) General Manager $57,881 Annually

(1) CSD Clerk/Treasurer $12.00 Hourly

(Step 1) (Step 2) (Step 3) (Step 4)

Employee Classification Start After 1 Yr. After 2 Yrs. After 3 Yrs.

(1) Maintenance Manager (A) $66,500 $70,000 $73,500 $77,175

(1) Maintenance Supervisor (A) $38,367 $40,559 $42,752 $44,944

(1) Landscape Maint. II (H) $15.23 $16.28 $17.33 $18.38

(3) Landscape Maint. I (H) $11.03 $12.08 $13.13 $14.18

(0) Part-Time Maint. I (H) $11.03 N/A N/A N/A

(A)=Annual Salary (H)=Hourly Salary

a)

b)

c)

d)

e) Saddle Creek CSD meets on the third Tuesday of each month. Directors receive a stipend of $100

for attending the meeting. Directors who miss a meeting are not compensated. The annual stipend

for a director who attends all CSD meetings is $1,200.

Exhibit "B"

SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

FY 2014 EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATION & SALARY SCHEDULE

Health Insurance Benefits are provided to the following Employee Classifications after completion

of 90 days full time employment with the District; 1) Maintenance Manager, 2) Maintenance

Supervisor, 3) Maintenance II and 4) Maintenance I. The District does not pay for Health Insurance

Coverage for 1) Employee Dependants, 2) Directors, 3) the General Manager, 4) the CSD

Clerk/Treasurer or 5) Part-Time Employees.

FY 2014 SALARY SCHEDULE

Upon completion of each full calandar year of employment with the District in the position of

Maintenance Supervisor, the District provides a $3,000 IRA contribution. This benefit is paid during

the month of January in the year following each full calendar year of employment. All payroll costs

associated with this benefit are borne by the District.

The Part-Time Maintenance I position is filled only when necessary to provide an adequate level of

service during times when full time positions are vacant.

Upon completion of each full calandar year of employment with the District in the position of

Maintenance Manager, the District provides a $3,500 IRA contribution. This benefit is paid during

the month of January in the year following each full calendar year of employment. All payroll costs

associated with this benefit are borne by the District.



Operational Expenses

OE 01/Audit: Costs for annual independent audit of District Finances.

OE 02/Bookkeeping: Cost for accounting and bookkeeping services.

OE 03/Misc. Fees: Cost for notary/bonds/online backup/etc.

OE 04/Legal Expenses: Cost for CSD Attorney and other legal professionals.

OE 05/Management Fees: Cost for monthly mangement services

OE 06/Insurance: Cost for SDRMA property loss & liability insurance.

OE 07/Contingency: Funds available to GM for unanticipated District expenses.

OE 08/Professional Development: Cost for business related meetings, travel & meal expenses.

OE 09/Dues, Certifications & Subscriptions: Cost for professional dues, certifications, etc.

OE 10/Uniform Expense: Cost for uniform purchase.

OE 11/Electric/Water/Sewer: Cost for PG&E/CCWD services to facilities under District control.

OE 12/Telephone Service: Cost for all District landline and cell phones.

OE 13/Internet Service: Cost for Caltel Internet service.

OE 14/Office Supplies: Cost for purchase of office supplies and mailings.

OE 15/Office Equipment: Cost for purchase and maintenance of office equipment.

OE 16/Gate maintenance: Cost for gate maintenance/repair and opener purchase.

OE 17/Street & Gate Lighting: Cost for maintenance and repair of lighting under District control.

OE 18/Landscape Supplies/Repairs: Cost for landscape supplies, repairs, etc.

OE 19/Landscape Equipment Repair: Cost for maintenance and replacement of landscape equipment.

OE 20/Tractor Lease/Purchase: Lease purchase payment for tractor.

OE 21/Landscape Equipment Gas/Oil: Gas & oil for landscape equipment tools/vehicles.

Page 1 of 2

Exhibit "C"

SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

FY 2014 BUDGET CATEGORY IDENTIFICATION

(Operational Expenses & Capital Outlay)



Operational Expenses

OE 22/Mosquito Control Products: Cost of chemicals, supplies and employee after-hour meals for

mosquito abatement operations.

OE 23/Mosquito Monitoring & Testing: Cost for testing of mosquitos/birds and sentinel chicken flock.

OE 24/Mosquito Vehicle Gas & Oil: Cost of gas and oil for mosquito abatement operations.

OE 25/Mosquito Abatement Maintenance: Cost for maintenance/repair of abatement vehicles/equipment.

OE 26/County Fees/LAFCO

Capital Outlay

CO-1 2" SDS Max Rotary Hammer with Attachments

CO-2 Workman MDX Cart

Page 2 of 2

SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

FY 2014 BUDGET CATEGORY IDENTIFICATION

(Operational Expenses & Capital Outlay)

Exhibit "C"


	August 19, 2014 Agenda
	Word Bookmarks
	agenda18610


	Item 6 Consent
	AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA
	a. Review of monthly financial report and approval of bills and claims for the month of July 2014.
	b. Approval of the minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of July 15, 2014
	Consent Calendar (also referred to as Consent Agenda) items are considered routine and will be acted upon by one motion. The purpose of the Consent Calendar is to provide an efficient means for approval of non-controversial/routine items, saving Board...
	The Board Secretary will read the title of the item as listed on Agenda. The Board President will then ask the Board if there is a request to pull any item, or discussion on the Consent Calendar in total.  The President then asks the public if there i...
	The Board is considering the Consent Calendar as a single item, and only one approval motion is required. There will be no separate discussion on these items unless a member of the Board, Staff or a member of the Public requests specific items be set ...
	If there is a request to individually discuss and consider any item on the Consent Calendar, then it is appropriate for the Board President to set that item aside, and ask for a motion approving the remaining Consent Calendar items first, then take up...

	Item 6a, Financial Reports 2014-07
	Item 6b, Draft Minutes, July 15 2014
	Draft
	SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
	MINUTES FOR THE MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	CALL TO ORDER
	ROLL CALL: Roll call indicated the following directors were present:
	CHANGES TO THE ORDER OF AGENDA:
	None suggested.
	CORRESPONDENCE: (Board will briefly address/respond/refer)
	None.
	STAFF REPORTS:
	a.   Site Manager:  He would like permission from the Board to fill the Maintenance 1 position, which was given.
	b.   General Manager:  He is very excited about this opportunity to serve as General Manager.  He feels that everyone is doing a good job.
	This is the 1st year that he will be an instructor for the CSDA (California Special Districts Association) Leadership Academy.   This is once a year and it will be in conflict with our November Board meeting and he is hoping that the Board will resche...
	Kampa will be attending the annual CSDA Conference in Palm Springs at the end of September at his own expense.
	There is going to be a funding fair he will be attending on October 9, 2014 and invited directors to attend as well.  CA Financing Coordination Committee will have State and Federal Agencies available to discuss funding of any projects that we have pl...
	DIRECTORS REPORTS:
	ADJOURNMENT – Having no further business, President Lazarus adjourned the meeting at 3:23PM. CSD’s next board meeting date is August 19, 2014.

	Item 7a, Audit
	AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA

	Item 7a,  2013 Audit Report Final Version
	Item 7b, Drought
	AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA

	Item 7c, Colflict of Interest
	AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA

	Item 7c, Resolution
	Item 7c, SCCSD Conflict of Interest Code
	Item 7c, Conflict of Interest Code Guidance
	Item 8a, IRWMP
	AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA

	Item 8a, IRWMP Background
	Item 8a, Protocol for Joining the T-S JPA Board
	Item 8b, CSDA Credit Card
	AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA

	Item 8b, CSDA cardFAQSheet
	Item 8b, CSDA cardProgramDescription
	Item 8b, CSDA cardAgreement
	Item 8b, Resolution
	Item 8c, Credit Card Use
	AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA

	Item 8c, Resolution
	Item 8c, SCCSD 3145 Credit Card Use Policy
	3145. Purpose
	3145.1. Policy/Procedure
	3145.2. Safekeeping of the Credit Card
	The Cardholder is responsible for the security of the District credit card. If a District credit card is used infrequently, such as for staff travel, the card will be safely stored and under the control of the General Manager while it is not in use, a...
	3145.3. Credit Card Purchase Procedures
	3145.5. Lost or Stolen Credit Card
	Should a cardholder lose or have his/her District credit card stolen, it is his/her responsibility to contact the bank immediately, and notify the General Manager or Bookkeeper as well.  The Bookkeeper will record the following: cardholder's complete ...
	3145.6. Return of the Credit Card
	The General Manager is responsible for retrieving the credit card when an employee separates from the District.  Use of the credit card for any purpose after its surrender is prohibited.
	3145.7. Responsibility Assignments
	Saddle Creek Community Services District
	CARD RETURN:


	Purchase supplies and services on behalf of the District in accordance with these guidelines
	Notify both the bank and the Bookkeeper if the card is lost or stolen
	Cardholders:
	Return card to the General Manager if it is not to be used for an extended period
	Provide order confirmation and verification of order receipt as quickly as possible
	Review of the monthly credit card charge summary provided by the bank
	Ensure each transaction is fully documented, and ensure that the correct budget account is charged for each purchase
	Bookkeeper:
	Prompt payment of the monthly credit card statement
	Ensure that the credit card is surrendered upon separation from the District
	General Manager
	Review credit card program administration for compliance with this policy

	Item 8d, Travel Expense Limitation
	AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA

	Item 8d, Resolution
	Item 8d, SCCSD 3030 Travel Expense Limitation
	Item 8e, Board Member Compensation
	AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA

	Item 8e, SCCSD 4030 Board Member Compensation
	Item 8e, Resolution
	Item 8g, Budget Amendment
	AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA

	Item 8f, 2014 Budget Exhibits_A_B_C Revised 07-15-14


Saddle Creek Community Services District 

Regular Board Meeting of July 15, 2014

Agenda Page 2







DIRECTORSSaddle Creek Community Services District

1000 Saddle Creek Drive - Copperopolis, CA  95228

(209 785-6260 – saddlecreekcsd.org



Kent Lazarus, President

Scott Baker, Vice President

Charlie Robinson

Darlene DeBaldo

Sue Russ



                    

REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA

August 19, 2014  2:00 PM

Saddle Creek Lodge, Members Lounge

1001 Saddle Creek Drive, Copperopolis, CA





1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. CHANGES TO ORDER OF AGENDA



5. PUBLIC COMMENT (Each speaker is limited to two (2) minutes)

[bookmark: agenda18610]Members of the public appreciated for taking the time to attend this meeting and provide comments on matters of District business. Any member of the public may address the Board relating to any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction. This need not be related to any item on the agenda; however, the Board cannot act on an item unless it was noticed on the agenda.



6. CONSENT CALENDAR

Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be acted upon by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on these items unless a member of the Board, Staff or a member of the Public requests specific items be set aside for separate discussion.

a. Review of monthly financial report and approval of bills and claims for the month of July 2014.

b. Approval of the minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of July 15, 2014 



7. OLD BUSINESS

a. Discussion/Action regarding acceptance of the 2013 independent Audit Report prepared by Larry Bain, CPA

b. Update report by District staff of the Impact of Drought and Mandatory Water Conservation on District Operations.

c. Approval of a Resolution amending and adopting the District’s Conflict of Interest Code pursuant to California Government Code Section 83700 et seq. 





8. NEW BUSINESS

a. Discussion/Action regarding participation in the Tuolumne-Stanislaus Integrated Regional Water Management Plan, Watershed Advisory Committee and Joint Powers Authority.  

b. Approval of a Resolution authorizing execution of an agreement with Bank of the West for participation in the California Special Districts Association credit card program.

c. Approval of a Resolution establishing the Board policy on Credit Card Use.  

d. Approval of a Resolution establishing the Board policy on Travel Expense Limitations.

e. Approval of a Resolution establishing the Board Policy on Board Member Compensation.

f. Discussion/Action regarding amendment to the 2014 budget to reflect a reduction in personnel expenses and a commensurate increase in contracted services expenses.   



9. STAFF REPORTS:

Brief reports will be provided by District staff to inform the Board and public on the status of general operational and administrative matters.  No action will be taken by the Board during Reports, however items discussed may be recommended for discussion and action on a future meeting agenda. 

a. Site Manager

b. General Manager

(1) Report on the status of preparation of Board priorities and management objectives for 2014/2015 

(2) Proposed policy on Easement Abandonment Procedures

(3) Report on general district administrative matters



10. DIRECTORS REPORTS:

Brief reports will be provided by District Board members to inform on matters of general interest.  No action will be taken by the Board during Reports, however items discussed may be recommended for discussion and action on a future meeting agenda.



11. [bookmark: _GoBack]ADJOURNMENT 			Next Meeting – September 16, 2014

Agenda Materials: May be viewed on the bulletin boards outside the Saddle Creek Pro Shop, on the Sports Club Bulletin Board and at the CSD Website on the Saturday proceeding each meeting date. Materials will also be available at the meeting.



Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance: If you require special assistance to participate in Board Meetings, please contact the CSD Clerk at (209) 785-0100. Advance notification will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to insure accessibility.




Saddle Creek Community Services District

Regular Meeting of August 19, 2014



AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA



6 	CONSENT CALENDAR

a. Review of monthly financial report and approval of bills and claims for the month of July 2014.

b. Approval of the minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of July 15, 2014



Background

Consent Calendar (also referred to as Consent Agenda) items are considered routine and will be acted upon by one motion. The purpose of the Consent Calendar is to provide an efficient means for approval of non-controversial/routine items, saving Board time and energy for agenda items that require much more thought and discussion.  Consent items are still a matter of public business and the public is allowed to comment on any item on the agenda, Consent or otherwise.  



The Board Secretary will read the title of the item as listed on Agenda. The Board President will then ask the Board if there is a request to pull any item, or discussion on the Consent Calendar in total.  The President then asks the public if there is any comment or a request to pull an item for separate discussion. 



The Board is considering the Consent Calendar as a single item, and only one approval motion is required. There will be no separate discussion on these items unless a member of the Board, Staff or a member of the Public requests specific items be set aside for separate discussion; and the Board President approves its removal from the Consent Calendar. As a matter of procedure, this request should always be honored.  



If there is a request to individually discuss and consider any item on the Consent Calendar, then it is appropriate for the Board President to set that item aside, and ask for a motion approving the remaining Consent Calendar items first, then take up the pulled item(s) as if they were separately listed on the agenda.  



Recommended Motion

I move to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.    

[bookmark: _GoBack]


Draft

SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

MINUTES FOR THE MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS



July 15, 2014







CALL TO ORDER

	The Saddle Creek Community Services District (CSD) Board of Directors held their monthly meeting on Tuesday July 15, 2014.  President Lazarus called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM in the Members Lounge and led Directors and staff in the Pledge of Allegiance.



ROLL CALL:	Roll call indicated the following directors were present: 

President: 			Kent Lazarus  	

Vice President:		Scott Baker

Director 			Darlene DeBaldo

Director 			Sue Russ

Director 			Charlie Robinson

							

	Staff:		The following staff members were present:	

			General Manager		Peter Kampa					

Site Manager: 		Greg Hebard

	      		Clerk/Treasurer:		Phyllis Richards



	Public:	Castle & Cooke		Dave Haley

			



CHANGES TO THE ORDER OF AGENDA: 	

None suggested.



PUBLIC COMMENT: 



	None



CONSENT CALENDAR: Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be acted upon by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Board, Staff or a member of the public requests specific items to be set aside for separate action.



a.  Approval of General Manager services contract - Kampa Community Solutions,

LLC.



The General Manager search Ad-Hoc Committee and Board of Directors has completed its evaluation of candidates, issued an employment offer and has received acceptance of that offer by Kampa Community Solutions, LLC.   The Board approved the contract with Kampa Community Solutions, LLC as presented.



b. 	Review of monthly financial report and approval of bills and claims for the month

of June 2014.



c. 	Approval of the minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of June 17, 2014.



Motion by Director Robinson and Second by Director Baker to move approval of items a, b and c of the Consent Agenda. Motion passed unanimously.



CORRESPONDENCE: (Board will briefly address/respond/refer)



	None. 



	

OLD BUSINESS:



a.	 Update report by District staff on Calaveras County Water District (CCWD)

  Mandatory Phase 3 Water Conservation.



General Manager Kampa summarized the written report presented to the Board regarding the fact that the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) has issued a directive to permitted water right holders, requiring that all surface water diversions be terminated. Calaveras County Water District (CCWD) received such a directive, but due to the fact that surface water is their only source of water supply for many of the communities it serves, they were able to exempt certain levels of water diversions by submitting a strict water conservation compliance plan. Included in this agenda item for discussion at the meeting was a copy of the email sent to the Board on July 9, 2014.  The purpose of this agenda item was to provide an update to the Board and community on the potential impact of water supply cutbacks on our operations and facilities; as well as to convey the cooperative efforts of the golf course and CCWD.



Site Manager Greg Hebard stated that we are currently lower than the 35% reduction required by CCWD and that although we are still making pond adjustments, our systems are staying healthy.



President Lazarus wanted to know if digging wells would be a possibility.  Mr. Haley stated that there is no ground water in this area in fact the wells are drying up.



b.	 Final report and abolishment of the interim District Management and General

 Manager Search Committees.



The Board of Directors had previously established two Ad-hoc committees to ensure the proper management of the day to day affairs of the District during the time period when no General Manager was present, and to select a candidate to serve as the replacement General Manager. The committees have now completed their task and provided a closing report on their activities. The new General Manager selected, Peter J. Kampa was introduced to the Board by the Committee.



President Lazarus and Site Manager Hebard thanked Directors Russ and Baker for all their help.  The Board then abolished the committees.



Director Russ said that the only thing that is left to do is to get a new visa card for the CSD.  We currently have one with Mother Load Bank; however we have moved all of our accounts to Umpqua Bank.  She will turn this item over to GM Kampar for handling.  





NEW BUSINESS:



a.	Review/Discussion of the 2013 independent Audit Report prepared by Larry Bain, CPA; who will be in attendance at the August meeting for clarification and

questions.



An annual audit of the District's financial statements is completed pursuant to the requirements of State law.  Larry Bain, CPA was engaged to conduct the audit for the 2013 calendar year, and the draft audit was included in the Board’s agenda packet for advance review.  Mr. Bain will be in attendance to further discuss the audit and answer questions during the August 2014 Board meeting.  



Manager Kampa stated that commendations to staff are appropriate as the financial statements appear to be in good order, with no material weaknesses noted. The deficiencies stated in the audit report are not uncommon for smaller special districts and management will propose to the Board a slate of actions to remedy any deficiencies as necessary and appropriate.



Director DeBaldo wanted to know what Peter’s experience with Federal Unemployment Tax has been.  He indicated that he has never heard of a district paying that tax.  The Board discussed briefly the need for an updated expense reimbursement policy.  Kampa will propose such a policy for Board consideration.   GM Kampa will discuss the Board’s concerns with Larry Bain.



Mr. Haley stated that he would like to have the Reserve Funds identified and to know how much is funded, and what is the balance.  GM Kampa stated that he is not sure what steps the Board has taken to set up Reserve Funds.  



Director Russ believes that the money that we currently have is to run the district, and when we are completely built out we should have enough funds for the reserve.  



GM Kampa stated that there are good reserve guidelines and the Board can adopt a policy, however there might not be funds to support it.  He will review the documentation and get back to the Board. 



Director Robinson stated that we are not subject to the Gann limit, and it is shown on the audit.  He would like to have this item corrected.  Kampa will review the matter with Auditor Bain. 



b.	 Discussion/Action regarding amendment to the District's Conflict of Interest code

 pursuant to California Government Code Section 83700 et seq.



State law requires that the District issue a report on its Conflict of Interest Code every two years in even numbered years. The District last considered update to its Code in 20l2 and update consideration is now necessary.  A copy of the current Conflict of Interest Code was distributed to the Board during the meeting. The purpose of the Code is to ensure that the District is operated and managed in an ethical manner, consistent with the many applicable laws and standards.   The Code must be amended when circumstances change such as modified employee or Board responsibilities, or contracting for management services versus hiring regular employees; both of which have occurred recently at the District. Brief discussion was held on proposed Code amendments, with Kampa directed to return with a final version to be placed on the August 2014 agenda for approval.



GM Kampa stated that he will have to review our Conflict of Interest Code.  There are certain requirements that have to be met.  He will put this information together for the Board’s review and if it needs legal review he will also have this done. 



Motion by Director Robinson and Second by Director Russ to move approval of GM Kampa’s review of the Conflict of Interest Code, and when completed he will present a policy proposal to the Board.    Motion passed unanimously.



c. 	Discussion/Action regarding the process and schedule for establishment of District priorities and supporting management objectives for the General Manager.  

	

In a written report to the Board, Kampa described the importance of setting goals to guide the district and creating objectives that are clearly defined and measurable; for both the performance of the District and General Manager.  President Lazarus would like to set up a task force with one of the directors and GM Kampa.  He suggested Director DeBaldo meet with GM Kampa to come up with a list of goals and objectives for the new general manager.  Director DeBaldo had no objections and agreed to be part of the task force.



The Board proposed to conduct a public hearing to discuss the goal and objectives for the district.    President Lazarus would like a report back to the Board within 60-90 days.    GM Kampa will have a report ready to present to the Board in the September or October Board Meeting.



d.	 Discussion/Action regarding waiver of compensation due to directors for

 attendance at the special meetings of May 13, 2014 and June 17 and 20, 2014.



The Board held vibrant discussion regarding the remuneration made available to directors for meeting attendance and the level of effort to prepare for and attend meetings.  There was sentiment both to waive the receipt of compensation and to receive it. 



Motion by Director Robinson and Second by Director DeBaldo to move approval of waiving the compensation due the directors for attendance in the three (3) special meeting of May 13, 2014 and June 17 and 20, 2014. Following extensive discussion, no vote was taken on the Motion and GM Kampa was directed to write a 1st draft of a new policy regarding Board meeting compensation.   

 



STAFF REPORTS:



a.  	Site Manager:  He would like permission from the Board to fill the Maintenance 1 position, which was given. 



[bookmark: _GoBack]b.  	General Manager:  He is very excited about this opportunity to serve as General Manager.  He feels that everyone is doing a good job.



This is the 1st year that he will be an instructor for the CSDA (California Special Districts Association) Leadership Academy.   This is once a year and it will be in conflict with our November Board meeting and he is hoping that the Board will reschedule this meeting.    The Board was favorable to such a change and will make a decision as we get closer to the date.  



Kampa will be attending the annual CSDA Conference in Palm Springs at the end of September at his own expense.  



There is going to be a funding fair he will be attending on October 9, 2014 and invited directors to attend as well.  CA Financing Coordination Committee will have State and Federal Agencies available to discuss funding of any projects that we have planned in our community.  



DIRECTORS REPORTS:



President Lazarus – He again thanked Directors Russ and Baker, and Directors Robinson and Lazarus for doing such a good job with the Ad-Hoc Committees.



V/President Baker – None



Secretary Robinson – None



Director Russ – None



Director DeBaldo – Will miss next month’s meeting.



ADJOURNMENT – Having no further business, President Lazarus adjourned the meeting at 3:23PM. CSD’s next board meeting date is August 19, 2014.







_________________________________			

Phyllis Richards, CSD Clerk/Treasurer						







_________________________________				

Peter Kampa, General Manager



	

											

APPROVED BY:	





___________________________

Kent Lazarus, Board President

							





___________________________							SEAL

Scott Baker, V/President


Saddle Creek Community Services District

Regular Meeting of August 19, 2014



AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA



7. 	OLD BUSINESS

a. Discussion/Action regarding acceptance of the 2013 independent Audit Report prepared by Larry Bain, CPA



Background

An annual audit of the District’s financial statements is completed pursuant to the requirements of State law. Larry Bain, CPA was engaged to conduct the audit for the 2013 calendar year, and the draft audit was distributed last month for public review.  This agenda item is to receive additional information on the audit, and for its acceptance by the Board.  Mr. Bain will be in attendance to discuss the audit and answer questions from the Board and public during this meeting.     



During the July 15, 2014 Board meeting, the Board briefly discussed each deficiency listed and expressed the following concerns with the audit as prepared:

1. Internal Controls over Financial Reporting – The Board felt that we have diversified the financial duties to the maximum extent feasible with our small staff.  The Board feels as though there are adequate controls in place to have confidence in the accuracy of the financial reports and to avoid embezzlement and other related problems.  Board members would like these deficiencies removed from the audit, if possible.  

2. Compliance with the Gann Limit – Members of the Board felt as though we were exempt from Gann Limit reporting due to the fact that our Special Tax funding approved in 2001 allows for automatic increases. The need for including the Gann limit in the audit was questioned.  It has since been confirmed that we are indeed subject to Gann Limit reporting, but this calculation will in reality have no effect on the amount of our special tax levy or the funding we have available.  

3. Classification of staff as exempt – Board members familiar with the operation stated that the Maintenance Supervisor was expected to assume the management and administrative responsibilities of the Site Manager on a regular basis; exercised independent authority and judgment and therefore the exempt classification is justified.  



One of the primary duties of the Board is their fiduciary responsibility with regard to District finances.  The Board must establish policies and ensure that the procedures and practices of District management provide the highest level of protection of public funds, and that these funds are invested in appropriate activities and means to achieve the level of service desired by the community, through this Board. The only way for the Board to confirm that this is occurring is to receive accurate and timely financial reporting.  



In addition to our legal requirement to have an audit conducted, this review of District finances and internal controls serves as an independent, third party look at management and provides the Board and management with information to confirm or raise concern regarding whether there are gaps in our policies or systems that could, if they were in place, avoid to the maximum extent feasible embezzlement or other fraudulent activity.  



None of the deficiencies reported by Mr. Bain negatively affect our financial position, bonding or borrowing capabilities.  Simply put, Mr. Bain tests our financial practices using various general and government accounting standards and if we do not meet the standard in his professional opinion, he then is required to report such in the Audit report to the Board.  The statement regarding lack of separation of duties is common among all small districts with limited staffing, and I agree we do separate responsibilities very well. 



The Board’s primary concern should be with whether or not Material Weaknesses exist in our financial systems, as defined in the audit report.  In Mr. Bain’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting beginning on Page 18, he reports that no such material weaknesses were discovered in his review of our financial statements.  The Board would have been expected to act swiftly to remedy any material weaknesses, but since none were reported, the comparative deficiencies identified are provided to assist the Board in evaluating financial risk and if determined necessary, future policy development.  



[bookmark: _GoBack]I viewed this audit as a positive reflection of the Board and District management, and with some new policies developed, all deficiencies will be addressed by next year’s audit.  Considering the Board’s stated concerns with deficiencies contained within the audit, staff recommends that we file a formal Board response to the Audit. Our response should address the deficiencies reported by Mr. Bain and describe our position in agreement or disagreement, as well as our planned response to address each concern raised. This Audit response will then be presented to the firm conducting the 2014 audit, for their consideration.  



Recommended Motion

I move to accept the 2013 Audit Report prepared by Larry Bain and direct staff to prepare an audit response letter on behalf of the Board; that will be approved at the September 2014 Board meeting.    




Saddle Creek Community Services District

Regular Meeting of August 19, 2014



AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA



7. 	OLD BUSINESS

b. Update report by District staff of the Impact of Drought and Mandatory Water Conservation on District Operations



Background

District staff has done a fantastic job working with the water supply being made available to us due to the drought and mandatory water delivery restrictions placed on CCWD by the state.  Of great benefit to our services has been the positive working relationship with both Castle & Cook, and the golf course.  Working within these water restrictions and meeting the expectations of our community can be tense at times, but overall there has been a thorough understanding and respect among the parties of the needs and interests of all.  



As a matter of information, CCWD delivers water to our community under a state permitted appropriative water right. In June, the state for the first time in history issued a demand to permitted water rights holders to cease all unnecessary diversions from surface waters.  CCWD had a week to respond regarding how this was to be accomplished, which they did.  Their response resulted in a cutback of 35% in water deliveries to the golf course, which in turn affected our water deliveries the same.  I have determined that water deliveries to our wetlands is not optional and in fact is required for compliance with the various state and federal permits under which we operate.  



[bookmark: _GoBack]The state mandate did not instruct CCWD on how to deal specifically with the cutbacks; that decision was left to CCWD’s management and Board.  In conversations with colleagues at the State Water Board, they offered to issue assurance to CCWD that no action would be taken against them for delivering the water needed, as determined by our staff for our permit compliance.  The state is primarily concerned with unlawful waste and unreasonable use of water, and does not intent to strictly enforce actions against districts such as CCWD, if they do not meet their water conservation goals or mandates.  This should provide CCWD and our community partners with a level of relief regarding operations over the next month or so.  We are prepared to raise this issue with the CCWD management or Board if necessary to ensure that our community is not unnecessarily damaged.  



Recommendation

For discussion only   




Saddle Creek Community Services District

Regular Meeting of August 19, 2014



AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA



7. 	OLD BUSINESS

c. Approval of a Resolution amending and adopting the District’s Conflict of Interest Code pursuant to California Government Code Section 83700 et seq



Background

We have received notification from Calaveras Conty that we are required to consider whether or not updates to our Conflict of Interest Code is required.  At the July  15, 2014 Board meeting, you were provided a copy of our current 16 page Code, as it was originally adopted in 1996.   



As directed, staff has developed and included with this agenda a draft revised Conflict of Interest Code for your consideration.  In preparation of this revised Code, the policies of many Districts throughout the state were reviewed.  The County of Santa Clara issued to its special districts a guidance document, attached, which describes the necessary Code content and recommended form policy to be adopted by its agencies.  This guidance recommends the adoption of a policy that incorporates by reference the provisions of Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC) Regulation 18730 in the text of the policy, rather than listing all of the complex provisions of this law in the adopted policy text. 



Further, with our policy adopting FPPC 18370 by reference, when this law is amended over time, our policy remains legally consistent and does not require frequent modification.  



In the draft policy, all directors and all consultants are required to file Form 700, Conflict of Interest Statements with the District, who will in turn file the original with the County Clerk.  The policy contains a relatively detailed description of the work performed for the District by consultants that would require them to file Form 700s.  For our District currently, the General Manager, Bookkeeper and all Board Members are required to file Form 700s within 1 month of election or appointment, annually and within one month of leaving office.   



[bookmark: _GoBack]Following approval by our Board, the Policy/Code will be transmitted to the County for their approval and filing.  



Recommended Motion

I move to approve Resolution ___, 2014, amending and adopting the District’s Conflict of Interest Code pursuant to California Government Code Section 83700 et seq.   




RESOLUTION ___, 2014

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT AMENDING THE DISTRICT’S CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE PURSUANT TO THE POLITICAL REFORM ACT OF 1974

WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of California has enacted the Political Reform act of 1974, Government Code Section 81000 et. Seq. (Act), which requires all public agencies, including but not limited to the Saddle Creek Community Services District (District) to adopt and keep updated a conflict of interest code; and

WHEREAS, the District has a Conflict of Interest Code which has been reviewed on a biennial basis and was last amended December 16, 1996 and which now requires updating; and

WHEREAS, the regulations implementing the Act provide that the District may adopt the terms of 2 Cal. Code of Regulations Section 18730  in order to adopt a conflict of interest code which will be self-updating as the regulations are updated; and

WHEREAS, at the same time as the District adopts Section 18730, the District must also update and adopt a designation of employees covered by the conflict of interest code and the disclosure categories for each employee as set out in Appendix A to this Policy adopting Section 18730 by reference; and

WHEREAS, such designation and disclosures for each designated employee and Consultant are set out in the Appendix to this Policy; and

WHEREAS, the designated employees shall file forms with the District's Board Secretary, who shall maintain a file copy in the District office and forward the original to the Calaveras County Clerk of the Board; and

WHEREAS, the potential penalties for violation of the provisions of the Act are substantial and may include criminal and civil liability, as well as equitable relief which could result in the District being restrained or prevented from acting in cases where the provisions of the Act may have been violated; and

WHEREAS, notice of the time and place of the District Board meeting and of consideration by the Board of the proposed amended Conflict of Interest Code has been provided to each designated employee and publicly posted for review on the District website, in the District office and in the customary agenda packet distribution location.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the District does hereby amend and adopt the Conflict of Interest Code as presented.

 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the said amended Conflict of Interest Code shall become effective on September 1, 2014 and that the Board Secretary shall provide a copy of such Code to the Calaveras County Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, the code reviewing body.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Saddle Creek Community Services District on August 19, 2014 by the following vote:





	AYES:

	NOES:

	ABSTAIN:

	ABSENT:						ATTEST:

[bookmark: _GoBack]

______________________________                               _______________________________

Kent Lazarus, President					Phyllis Richards, Board Secretary

Board of Directors


	SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Policy and Procedure Manual

1



POLICY TITLE:		Conflict of Interest Code

POLICY NUMBER:	1020

ADOPTED:		

AMENDED:



1020. The Political Reform Act (Government Code section 8100, et seq.) requires state and local government agencies to adopt and promulgate conflict of interest codes.  The Fair Political Practices Commission has adopted a regulation (2 California Code of Regulations section 18730) which contains the terms of a standard conflict of interest code, which can be incorporated by reference in an agency's code.  After public notice and hearings it may be amended by the Fair Political Practices Commission to conform to amendments in the Political Reform Act.



Therefore, the terms of 2 California Code of Regulations section 18730 and any amendments to it duly adopted by the Fair Political Practices Commission are hereby incorporated by reference. This regulation and the text here designating officials and establishing disclosure categories, shall constitute the conflict of interest code of the Saddle Creek Community Services District. 



1020.1. The full text of Section 18730, together with any amendments thereto, may be found at: .http://www.fopc.ca.gov/legal/regs/current/l 8730.pdf .



1020.2. Designated positions shall file statements of economic interest with the agency.  Upon receipt of the statements, the agency shall make and retain a copy and forward the original of this statement to the Tuolumne County Clerk of the Board of Supervisors.  Statements of Economic Interest are public records available for public inspection.



1020.3. DESIGNATED POSITIONS:  The designated positions listed below are required to file Form 700 Statements of Economic Interest disclosing certain personal financial interests.  These positions are required to file the applicable individual schedules reporting investments, business  positions, and sources of income located in or doing business in the agency's jurisdiction and interests in real property located in the agency's jurisdiction.





		Designated  Positions

		Disclosure  Category



		Member, Board of Directors

		1



		Consultants

		2










1020.4. DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES:

1020.4.1. Disclosure Category 1: Persons in this category shall disclose all interests in real property, as well as investments, business positions and sources of income, including gifts, loans and travel payments.

1020.4.2. Disclosure Category 2:  Consultants shall disclose pursuant to the broadest disclosure category in the conflict of interest code subject to the following limitation: The District may determine in writing that a particular consultant, although a "designated position," is hired to perform a range of duties that is limited in scope and thus is not required to comply fully with the disclosure requirements of the broadest disclosure category, but instead must comply with more tailored disclosure requirements specific to that consultant.  Such a determination shall include a description of the consultant's duties and, based upon that description, a statement of the extent of disclosure requirements.  All such determinations are public records and shall be retained for public inspection along with this conflict of interest code.

1020.5. For purposes of Category 2, a "consultant" is an individual who, pursuant to a contract with a state or local government agency, makes a governmental decision whether to:

1020.5.1. Approve a rate, rule, or regulation;

1020.5.2. [bookmark: _GoBack]Adopt or enforce a law;

1020.5.3. Issue, deny, suspend, or revoke any permit, license, application, certificate, approval, order, or similar authorization or entitlement;

1020.5.4. Authorize the agency to enter into, modify, or renew a contract provided it is the type of contract that requires agency approval;

1020.5.5. Grant agency approval to a contract that requires agency approval and to which the agency is a party, or to the specifications for such a contract;

1020.5.6. Grant agency approval to a plan, design, report, study, or similar item;

1020.5.7. Adopt, or grant agency approval of, policies, standards, or guidelines for the agency, or for any subdivision thereof; or

1020.5.8. A consultant is also an individual who, pursuant to a contract with the district, serves in a staff capacity with the district and in that capacity participates in making a governmental decision as defined in regulation 18702.2 or performs the same or substantially all the same duties for the district that would otherwise be performed by an individual holding a position specified in the district's Conflict of Interest Code under Government Code section 87302.

SCCSD Conflict of Interest Policy                                                                                                              Page 2 of 2




Saddle Creek Community Services District

Regular Meeting of August 19, 2014



AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA



8. 	NEW BUSINESS

a. Discussion/Action regarding participation in the Tuolumne-Stanislaus Integrated Regional Water Management Plan, Watershed Advisory Committee and Joint Powers Authority



Background

The Tuolumne-Stanislaus Integrated Regional Water Management Plan, or IRWMP is a very comprehensive planning document prepared by and for the benefit of local water resource management interests.  The purpose of the plan is to establish a local/regional process by which water resources conflicts are identified and resolved, and water, wastewater and environmental projects are strategically integrated together to address a broad community of resource interests.  



The IRWMP also contains a structure and process for prioritizing projects that benefit the water resources of the region.  Due to the fact that by its very nature, the IRWMP process resolves local water resources conflict and represents broadly supported projects, the state is beginning more and more to use the IRWMP as the vehicle to award grants for projects that affect water resources.  For example, the most recent water bond, Proposition 84 (2002), had $1 Billion for IRWMP projects and the water bond on the November 2014 ballot contains an additional $810 million specifically for IRWMP projects. Adoption of the regional IRWMP is necessary for our participation in the group and to access grant funds. 



[bookmark: _GoBack]As an agency that manages both water resources, environmental mitigation, wetlands management, as well as roads and storm drains which can contribute to localized flooding and water quality impacts, we are a logical participant in the an IRWMP.  The boundaries of the Tuolumne-Stanislaus Region contain our district. The IRWMP is made up of a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) which is the ultimate decisionmaking authority, and a Watershed Advisory Committee (WAC) through which all JPA actions and decisions flow.  The WAC makes recommendations to the JPA Board for approval.  We can participate in the WAC, the JPA or both.  The cost, advantages and disadvantages of each are discussed below:



1. Participate on the Watershed Advisory Committee only – Cost $100.  This would allow us to participate in the detailed planning discussions including proposing our projects for integration or as standalone projects.  Participation in the WAC requires approval by our Board and delegation of an individual and an alternate to attend monthly meetings in Sonora; three hours each.  The advantage is the ability to influence decisions and low cost.  The disadvantage is without a seat on the JPA, we do not have a final vote in the approval of decisions.  

2. Participation in the JPA – Cost to join in October = $8000 and in December = $5300.  The advantage is being able to vote on our projects and others, and the disadvantage is cost.  

3. Participation on both the JPA and WAC – Cost $8100/$5400.  It is recommended that if the Board finds participation in the JPA desirable, participation in the WAC is even more important to ensure our interests are adequately represented.  



More information about IRWMP in general can be found on the state’s website at http://www.water.ca.gov/irwm/grants/ .  Specific information and the actual IRWMP plan adopted in 2012 is contained on the following site: http://www.tcrcd.org/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=183&Itemid=114 .



Also included in this agenda packet is an overview brochure on IRWMP and a description of the process required to join the Tuolumne Stanislaus IRWMP.  



Recommended Motion

I move to approve participation of the Saddle Creek Community Services District in the Tuolumne-Stanislaus Integrated Regional Water Management Plan, Watershed Advisory Committee, appointing General Manager Peter Kampa as representative and _____________________ as alternate, and continuing to evaluate the opportunities for participation on the IRWMP JPA Board of Directors.    




Saddle Creek Community Services District

Regular Meeting of August 19, 2014



AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA



8. 	NEW BUSINESS

b. Approval of a Resolution authorizing execution of an agreement with Bank of the West for participation in the California Special Districts Association credit card program



Background

This item will approve a Resolution to authorize entering into an agreement between Bank of the West and the Saddle Creek Community Services District (District) establishing accounts for District credit cards. Included for your information is a draft credit card agreement including the terms and conditions, a FAQ sheet, and program description.  



Credit cards are a purchasing mechanism which improves the efficiency and convenience of conducting District business.   For many years, the District has provided the General Manager, Site Manager and Board Secretary with a credit card.  An opportunity is available for the District to qualify for a credit card program with many more benefits that our previous bank credit card.



Bank of the West has partnered with California Special Districts Association (CSDA) for a purchasing program which issues purchasing or credit cards to qualified member agencies.  The District is a member of CSDA and is eligible to make application to this program.  The program aggregates the purchases of all participating members and offers free annual membership and variable cash rebates based on the volume of purchasing of all of the participating members.



A Resolution, adopted by the Governing Board, together with the application will be submitted to Bank of the West to establish the credit card accounts.  The District has a Standard Practice with specific procedures relating to the use of credit cards.  In addition, a more detailed credit card use policy is being considered for adoption by this Board.



Recommended Motion

[bookmark: _GoBack]I move to approve Resolution___, 2014, authorizing the District to enter into an agreement with Bank of the West to establish District credit card accounts; and authorize the Board President to execute any necessary agreements.

   




RESOLUTION ___, 2014

[bookmark: _GoBack]A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT AUTHORIZING AGREEMENT WITH BANK  OF THE WEST TO PARTICIPATE IN THE CSDA DISTRICT PURCHASING CARD PROGRAM

WHEREAS,  Credit  cards  and  purchasing  cards  are  mechanisms  for  purchasing  goods  and services for the convenience of the Saddle Creek Community Services District (District); and

WHEREAS, the California Special Districts Association (CSDA) has negotiated with Bank of the West to provide a Purchasing Card Program for vendor payments, purchasing, travel or fleet transact ions, and

WHEREAS,  the  CSDA  District Purchasing  Card  Program  (Program)  is available  to  members  of the CSDA and the District is a member of the CSDA; and

WHEREAS,   the  Program  requires  an  application  for  credit  approval,  a  resolution  by  the District Governing Board, and District policy and procedures regarding the use of the credit cards; and

WHEREAS, the District has a Standard Practice of procedures for using credit cards as required by the Program,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Governing Board of the Saddle Creek Community Services District directs the following actions:



a. Authorize participation with Bank of the West in the CSDA District Purchasing Card program

b. Authorize the application to the Program for credit cards or purchasing cards;

c. Authorize the Board President to execute any necessary agreements

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,  that   this  Resolution  shall   take   effect   immediately   upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Saddle Creek Community Services District on August 19, 2014 by the following vote:

	AYES:

	NOES:

	ABSTAIN:

	ABSENT:						ATTEST:

______________________________                               _______________________________

Kent Lazarus, President					Phyllis Richards, Board Secretary

Board of Directors


Saddle Creek Community Services District

Regular Meeting of August 19, 2014



AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA



8. 	NEW BUSINESS

c. Approval of a Resolution establishing the Board policy on Credit Card Use 



Background

The District currently uses credit cards for intermittent purchases and for travel expenses.  The use of credit cards are an efficient means of making and documenting purchases, and to streamline payment of bills.  So long as credit cards are paid off each month, we typically do not incur finance charges for their use.  



The District currently does not have specific policy guidance in place regarding the use of District credit cards.  The District does currently have a Board approved purchasing policy and credit card use procedures that have been established by management.  The use of credit cards itself is not considered a risk from an audit perspective, so long as specific procedures are in place and enforced governing their use in accordance with laws and the policy of the District.    



[bookmark: _GoBack]The purpose of this proposed policy is to clarify the Boards expectations with regard to use of District credit cards. This policy prescribes specific procedures for credit card use, issuance and replacement if lost, documentation of purchases, accounting and administrative responsibilities.  



Recommended Motion

I move to approve Resolution ___, 2014, establishing the Board policy on Credit Card Use.     




RESOLUTION ___, 2014

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT ESTABLISHING A POLICY ON CREDIT CARD USE





WHEREAS, clearly written policies and procedures adopted by this Board are necessary for the efficient and effective management of the affairs of the District; and

[bookmark: _GoBack]WHEREAS, attached hereto is the policy of this Board relating to the use of District Credit Cards.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Saddle Creek Community Services District does hereby adopt and approve this policy on Credit Card Use. 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that   this policy shall   take   effect   immediately   upon adoption of this Resolution.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Saddle Creek Community Services District on August 19, 2014 by the following vote:



	AYES:

	NOES:

	ABSTAIN:

	ABSENT:						ATTEST:

______________________________                               _______________________________

Kent Lazarus, President					Phyllis Richards, Board Secretary

Board of Directors


	SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Policy and Procedure Manual

1



POLICY TITLE:		Credit Card Use

POLICY NUMBER:	3145

ADOPTED:		

AMENDED:





3145. Purpose

The purpose of this policy is to establish the policies and procedures for the issuance and usage of District Credit Cards.



3145.1. Policy/Procedure



3145.1.1. Purpose of District Credit Cards

District credit cards will be issued for the sole purpose of conducting the official business of the District.  Credit cards will be provided to select employees for the purpose of making purchases, securing reservations, paying travel expenses, placing orders, and doing District business in the most efficient manner. The District credit card is intended to replace the use of petty cash and open purchase orders.  



3145.1.2. Issuance of District Credit Cards 

When a District credit card is issued, the General Manager will ask the employee to sign a form acknowledging his/her understanding of the policies and procedures for the use of the District credit card and acknowledging the receipt of the credit card.



3145.1.3. Restricted Use of the Credit Card

The following restrictions are placed on all District credit cards:



3145.1.3.1. Credit cards are issued to District employees for the sole purpose of conducting official business of the District.  Improper use of a District credit card will be treated as misuse of public funds and will subject the Cardholder to disciplinary action.

3145.1.3.2. The District credit card is for the cardholder's use only.

3145.1.3.3. Cardholders must ensure that budgeted funds are available prior to making purchases.  The General Manager or Bookkeeper can assist the cardholder with any needed budget information.

3145.1.3.4. The District credit card shall not be used for any of the following:

· Cash advances, wire transfers, money orders, etc.

· Betting, casino gaming, or related activities.

· Political or religious organizations.

· Personal court costs, fines, bail or bonds.

· Purchases of items for which the District has cash discount agreements, unless for an emergency situation.

· Any personal items and personal services.



3145.2. Safekeeping of the Credit Card

The Cardholder is responsible for the security of the District credit card. If a District credit card is used infrequently, such as for staff travel, the card will be safely stored and under the control of the General Manager while it is not in use, and will be signed in and out as needed.



3145.3. Credit Card Purchase Procedures

Cardholders will complete the following steps with each purchase:

3145.3.1. For all orders, including mail and phone, require the vendor to provide a sales draft with pertinent information such as the vendor name, date, items purchased, and total sales. Email or fax confirmation shall be provided to the Bookkeeper upon receipt.

3145.3.2. Retain the sales draft with accompanying receipt/invoice.

3145.3.3. Submit any late received order confirmation receipts to the Bookkeeper on a monthly basis in conjunction with the credit card billing cycle.



3145.4. Payment of Credit Card Account

The District's Bookkeeper shall complete the following steps upon receipt of the credit card statement:

3145.4.1. Balance all sales drafts to the statement, which will show all transactions made during the billing cycle.  All items must be accounted for on the statement with a supporting sales draft, receipt/invoice, log entry, or order form, and district employee signature verifying receipt of all items purchased and/or billed. 

3145.4.2. Indicate the account number to be charged for each item by writing it on the statement, or statement recap.

3145.4.3. As quickly as possible following receipt of the monthly statement, the statement will be verified, reconciled and prepared for payment.  The payment will be mailed in a timely manner to avoid finance charges. The General Manager or his/her designee is authorized to arrange for automatic payment of the monthly credit card billing if all payment conditions above are met.   



3145.5. Lost or Stolen Credit Card

Should a cardholder lose or have his/her District credit card stolen, it is his/her responsibility to contact the bank immediately, and notify the General Manager or Bookkeeper as well.  The Bookkeeper will record the following: cardholder's complete name; District credit card number; date reported to police, if stolen; date the bank was notified, and; any purchase(s) made on the day the card was lost or stolen.  A new District credit card will be provided to the cardholder as soon as possible from the time the loss or theft is reported to the bank



3145.6. Return of the Credit Card

The General Manager is responsible for retrieving the credit card when an employee separates from the District.  Use of the credit card for any purpose after its surrender is prohibited.



3145.7. Responsibility Assignments



		Cardholders:

		Purchase supplies and services on behalf of the District in accordance with these guidelines



		

		Notify both the bank and the Bookkeeper if the card is lost or stolen



		

		Return card to the General Manager if it is not to be used for an extended period



		

		Provide order confirmation and verification of order receipt as quickly as possible



		Bookkeeper:

		Review of the monthly credit card charge summary provided by the bank



		

		Ensure each transaction is fully documented, and ensure that the correct budget account is charged for each purchase



		

		Prompt payment of the monthly credit card statement



		General Manager

		Ensure that the credit card is surrendered upon separation from the District



		

		Review credit card program administration for compliance with this policy













Page 3



Exhibit A

Saddle Creek Community Services District

Acknowledgment of Receipt of Credit Card and Cardholder Agreement



1. I acknowledge that I have received a Credit Card issued through Saddle Creek Community Services District to be used for purposes of conducting District business. I also acknowledge that I have received the District's Credit Card Policy providing guidelines for the use of this card. I agree to read the policy and abide by its procedures.



2. I understand that this card is issued as a convenience to the District and may be cancelled by the District at any time for any reason. I will not permit another person to use the Credit Card issued to me. I further understand that misuse of the card may result in discipline, up to and including termination and legal action.



3. I will be responsible for the security of the card. If lost or stolen, I will immediately notify the District's General Manager and the issuing bank.



I HAVE READ, UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO THE CONDITIONS ABOVE:







Name of Cardholder







Signature







Date

CARD RECEIPT:



Card Account Number:	 	

[bookmark: _GoBack]Date Issued to Cardholder:	 	



CARD RETURN:



I hereby surrender the credit card issued to me by the Saddle Creek Community Services District. I declare that all outstanding charges on the credit card are for official District business and will be paid through established procedures.



Card Holder Name:	     	 Signature/Date Returned:	



	


RESOLUTION ___, 2014

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT ESTABLISHING A POLICY TRAVEL EXPENSE LIMITATIONS





WHEREAS, clearly written policies and procedures adopted by this Board are necessary for the efficient and effective management of the affairs of the District; and

[bookmark: _GoBack]WHEREAS, attached hereto and incorporated herein is the policy of this Board relating to Travel Expense Limitations.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Saddle Creek Community Services District does hereby adopt and approve the attached policy on Travel Expense Limitations 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that   this policy shall   take   effect   immediately   upon adoption of this Resolution.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Saddle Creek Community Services District on August 19, 2014 by the following vote:



	AYES:

	NOES:

	ABSTAIN:

	ABSENT:						ATTEST:

______________________________                               _______________________________

Kent Lazarus, President					Phyllis Richards, Board Secretary

Board of Directors




	SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Policy and Procedure Manual

1

POLICY TITLE:	Travel Expense Limitation	

POLICY NUMBER:	3030

ADOPTED:			

AMENDED:





PURPOSE: To provide policy and procedures for the reimbursement of travel expenditures incurred by Directors, employees and contract employees while on District authorized business trips or at approved meetings.

TRAVEL ELIGIBILITY:

General. All travel shall be planned in the most economical way.

Travel Approval:

Budgeted. The budget shall contain a line item for Director, General Manager and Staff training and conferences. The travel expense to attend conventions, conferences, training seminars and similar meetings shall be kept to an absolute minimum and shall be limited to funds budgeted for such purpose. No more than two directors shall attend any single event unless separately approved by the Board of Directors. It is the intent of this Board to rotate attendance at such events among the Directors to the extent requested and feasible, with priority given to Board members serving in an official capacity on committees or task forces of the associations to which the District belongs. All Board member travel shall be approved by the Board of Directors on the Consent section of a meeting agenda. The Board President may give approval if time does not permit full Board approval

Unbudgeted. When the amount budgeted for travel expenses is exceeded for the budget year, or the event proposed to be attended was not contemplated at budget preparation time, then any associated travel expense reimbursement requires prior approval of the Board of Directors.

Expenses Eligible for Reimbursement:

Conference Limitation and Reporting Requirement 

Subject to the above budget limitations, Board members will be reimbursed expenses for up to two multi-day conferences/seminars per calendar year including the annual California Special District Association (CSDA) conference.

Directors are required by California Government Code Section 53232.3 to provide a brief oral or written report to the Board at the first meeting following the incurrence of a reimbursed expense.

Staff travel shall be limited to that necessary for achieving the certifications and education necessary to competently perform the job requirements, as recommended by the Site Manager or his/her designee and approved by the General Manager.

Transportation

Mileage Expense.    If  a  District vehicle  is not available, use of  a private  vehicle  must  be  authorized  by the  General  Manager  or President of the Board. Mileage reimbursement shall follow the rate per mile established by the IRS.

Parking and Bridge Toll Expense.   When necessary, parking or bridge tolls shall be reimbursed at actual cost. Receipts are required.

Public Transportation.   Use of public transportation when required shall be coach or economy class only. Receipts are required.

Meals

While attending approved District functions, the actual cost of meals shall be reimbursed up to a maximum per day in accordance with Attachment A. Receipts are required.

The actual cost of meals incurred during business luncheons, meetings, seminars or while on promotional tours that exceed the maximum daily allowance, as specified in Attachment A, must be approved by the Board of Directors.

EXCEPTION - When attending a conference, seminar or meeting held in an area where meal expenses are customarily more than the maximum daily allowance.

Lodging. The actual cost of single room occupancy shall be reimbursed up to a maximum per day in accordance with attachment A. Receipts are required.

EXCEPTION In some major cities, the limitation amount may be too low. Upon approval by the General Manager or Board President before departure, the limitation may be increased to a level of "reasonable and customary" for such a city.

EXCEPTION When attending a conference or seminar held in a particular hotel where rates are more than the maximum and convenient alternative lodging under the maximum is not available or appropriate.

Conference Registration. The actual cost of registration, including meals if applicable, shall be reimbursed. Receipts are required.

Other Expenses. Other expenses incurred as a direct result of the trip may be eligible for reimbursement at actual cost. Receipts are required.

INELIGIBLE  EXPENSES:

Personal Expenses. The cost of personal items, including entertainment (i.e. in room movies) and alcohol, is ineligible.

Other Family Members and Non District Employees. The cost of providing transportation, meals, lodging, etc., for a spouse, other family member(s) or non-District employee while traveling on official District business is ineligible.

EXCEPTION The General Manager may authorize the purchase of an occasional business related meal for non-District employees, within the limits of Exhibit A, when the employee seeking reimbursement is conducting a working meal with others and the intent of the meal purchase is to produce a positive outcome for the District.

[bookmark: _GoBack]Unreasonable Expenditures. The amount by which other eligible expenditures exceed limits herein established shall be deemed unreasonable and ineligible. It is the responsibility of every employee or Director to use good judgment when incurring expenditures while traveling on District business.

ADVANCE REGISTRATION AND CASH ADVANCES:

Advance Registration. For most seminars, conferences, etc., it is desirable to register in advance. Staff shall be responsible for making advance registrations upon receipt of an approved travel request.

Cash Advance. A cash advance in an amount per day in accordance with Attachment A may be made at the request of the employee or Director when traveling overnight. A request for a cash advance must be made to the General Manager at least seven (7) working days prior to the day of departure. Cash advances will be deducted from the total reimbursement claim by the District employee or Director and such reimbursement claim must be submitted within five (5) working days of the employees or Directors return.

REIMBURSEMENT  PROCEDURE:

Claim Form. A "Travel Reimbursement Claim" form must be completed and submitted, to the Bookeeper within fifteen (15) days of return from trip.

Approval. Travel expense reimbursement claims shall be submitted to the Board of Directors for approval monthly with the monthly bills.

Record Keeping. The Secretary of the Board shall maintain as a public record a separate file, by year, containing the approved travel expense claims for all Board members and the General Manager.




ATTACHMENT A



TRAVEL EXPENSE, ELIGIBILITY LIMITS









Mileage:	Allowance determined by Internal Revenue Service, per mile





Meals:	$60.00 maximum per day, 15% gratuity allowed in addition



Lodging:	$175.00 major city or published conference rate. Lodging for a one day conference/meeting shall be limited to one (1) night unless there are extenuating circumstances.



Cash Advance:	As required.



Mileage Guidelines:	Person to be reimbursed shall document the actual miles driven to and from the event and reimbursement shall be provided for the lesser of:

a) As determined by internet map search, the round trip mileage from the District office to the event and back to the District office, or

b) The mileage documented by the person to be reimbursed







SCCSD Policy 3030, Travel Expense Limitation                                                                                         Page 1 of 4








Saddle Creek Community Services District

Regular Meeting of August 19, 2014



AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA



8. 	NEW BUSINESS

d. Approval of a Resolution establishing the Board policy on Travel Expense Limitations



Background

State law is very specific with regard to approval, public reporting and reimbursement of Directors for travel expenses incurred while on District business.  In addition, several past financial audits have documented potential deficiencies in our internal financial controls related to travel expenses.  



[bookmark: _GoBack]This proposed policy is developed to strengthen our internal controls and at the same time provide an efficient and comprehensive guidance document for District management.       



Recommendation

I move to approve Resolution___, 2014 establishing the Board policy on Travel Expense Limitations.      




Saddle Creek Community Services District

Regular Meeting of August 19, 2014



AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA



8. 	NEW BUSINESS

e. Approval of a Resolution establishing the Board Policy on Board Member Compensation





Background

As directed during the July 15, 2014 Board meeting, attached is draft policy related to Board member compensation.  The Board had previously authorized compensation to Board members in the amount of $100 per meeting, and this proposed policy does not increase that amount; which is limited by state law.  



The policy is intended to define the meetings and events for which a Board member can expect compensation, up to the maximum of $600 per month as detailed in state law.  This policy proposes payment of the $100 for all Brown Act meetings (regular and special meetings); events, meetings of other public agencies or nonprofits and District related training, attendance at which has been preapproved by the Board.  For all events other than Brown Act meetings, Board members are required to submit a brief written report.



The language in this policy defining compensable meetings is taken right out of the Government Code, and its provisions are mandatory.  However, the Board can establish a rate of pay per day’s service of less than the $100.  Regular meetings can be compensated differently than special meetings and different than other compensable events.  In theory, the rate of compensation is intended to cover the cost, or value of the Director’s time in preparing for and attending the meeting or event. 



The proposed policy contains the proposed continued payment of the $100 per meeting.  The Board has the option to modify the amount at this meeting.  The policy also allows for a Directors to voluntarily waive compensation due to him/herself.   



[bookmark: _GoBack]Recommended Motion

I move to approve Resolution ____, 2014, establishing the Board policy on Board Member Compensation.     




RESOLUTION ___, 2014

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT ESTABLISHING A POLICY ON BOARD MEMBER COMPENSATION





WHEREAS, clearly written policies and procedures adopted by this Board are necessary for the efficient and effective management of the affairs of the District; and



WHEREAS, the California Government Code Section 61047 authorizes the payment to Directors of up to $100 per day for attendance at meetings and other approved District functions; and



WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has previously authorized payments to Directors in the amount of $100 per meeting and herein intends to clarify and codify the eligibility requirements for receipt of the compensation in accordance with state law; and 

[bookmark: _GoBack]WHEREAS, attached hereto and included in this action is the policy of this Board relating to Board Member Compensation.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Saddle Creek Community Services District does hereby adopt and approve this policy on Board Member Compensation.



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that   this policy shall   take   effect   immediately   upon adoption of this Resolution.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Saddle Creek Community Services District on August 19, 2014 by the following vote:



	AYES:

	NOES:

	ABSTAIN:

	ABSENT:						ATTEST:

______________________________                               _______________________________

Kent Lazarus, President					Phyllis Richards, Board Secretary

Board of Directors


	SADDLE CREEK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Policy and Procedure Manual

1



POLICY TITLE:		Board Member Compensation

POLICY NUMBER:	4130

ADOPTED:		August 19, 2014

AMENDED:



4130.1		Members of the Board of Directors shall receive compensation in an amount of one hundred dollars ($100) for each day of service. A member of the board of directors shall not receive compensation for more than six days of service in a month.



	4130.1.1	A member of the board of directors may individually waive any or all of the payments permitted by this policy.



[bookmark: _GoBack]4103.2		A “day of service” means any of the following:

1. A meeting conducted pursuant to the Ralph M. Brown Act; or

2. Attendance at other meetings and events specified below provided that the board of directors has previously approved the member’s representation at a board of directors’ meeting and that the member delivers a written report to the board of directors regarding the member’s representation at the next board of directors’ meeting following the meeting, training or public event detailed below:

a. Representation of the district at a public event,

b. Representation of the district at a public meeting or a public hearing conducted by another public agency

c. Representation of the district at a meeting of a public benefit nonprofit corporation on whose board the district has membership

d. Participation in a training program on a topic that is directly related to the district

	.





	


Saddle Creek Community Services District

Regular Meeting of August 19, 2014



AGENDA SUPPORTING DATA



8. 	NEW BUSINESS

f. Discussion/Action regarding amendment to the 2014 budget to reflect a reduction in personnel expenses and a commensurate increase in contracted services expenses



Background

The 2014 budget was adopted with the assumption that prior manager Charlie Martin would continue through the year to be paid as an employee of the District.  To replace Mr. Martin, a contract was entered into between the District and Peter J. Kampa of Kampa Community Solutions, LLC.  Mr. Kampa is paid as a contractor, and therefore all of the expense associated with his management services are proposed to be accounted for in a Management Fees line item, as shown in the attached Budget Revised July 15, 2014.   



[bookmark: _GoBack]The Management Fee expense is proposed at $28,500 which covers from July 15, 2014 through December 31, 2014.  The Personnel Expenses, Employee Wages line item in the approved 2014 budget was $310,000.  This amount is reduced in the Revised 2014 Budget proposed to $281,500, a $28,500 reduction. The bottom line of the budget does not change, with budgeted personnel expenses simply being reclassified as Management Fees.   



Recommended Motion

I move to approve the amended 2014 Budget dated July 15, 2014 as presented.  



